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Foreword by the Commodore & &7 5

It is my pleasure and privilege to introduce the Annual Report
and Accounts of The Hebe Haven Yacht Club Limited (the “Club”)
for the financial year running from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025
(the "2024-2025 Financial Year”), approved by a resolution of
the General Committee dated 6 October 2025.

This report is divided into four parts:

Part | provides a summary of the key activities of the Club during
the 2024-2025 Financial Year. It shows that sailing continues to
flourish with the Club successfully hosting a total of eight sailing
events, clocking up a total of 30 race days, including the 21
24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race and the 4'" World Sailing Steering
the Course Women'’s Festival.

Sailing development and training activities were equally vibrant,
with a number of our young sailors competing both nationally
and internationally, and with Tiago Salgado winning the ILCA4
Asian Championship.

An excellent summary of the Club’s various sailing events and
activities are provided at Sections 1, 2 and 3 below by Bridget
Chan, Harvey Jessop and Simon Robertson.

Sailability celebrated its 15" birthday and continued to go
from strength to strength, making its mark once again at the
Hansa World Championship and with Kay Rawbone BEM being
appointed Chair of the World Sailing Para Sailing Committee.
See Section 4 below for more.

On the marine operations side, the Club saw the commissioning
of its first electric sampan and a strengthening of the Bye-laws
related to derelict craft in order to facilitate fairer and more
effective utilization of the Club’s marine facilities. See the report
of Eddy Lo in Section 5 below for further details.
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Significant operational improvements were made to Hebe One
and there has been a drive to utilize Hebe One more for non-
sailing events. See the report of John KK Lo in Section 6 below.

It was a challenging year for the Club’s food and beverage offering
as essential reforms and staff restructuring were implemented in
the last quarter of the 2024-2025 Financial Year to reduce the cash
flow deficit from the restaurant operations, which had become
unsustainable, Early signs are that the reforms and restructuring
have had their intended effect. Carol Biddell provides more on
food and beverage matters in Section 7 below.

As to membership, the total number of members remained fairly
constant throughout the year at around 1,200. However, the
decline in the number of Senior Associate and Full members
continued, with the number of such members standing at 843 at
the end of the 2024-2025 Financial Year, as compared with 1082
ten years ago. Mike Sharp provides an excellent analysis of the
membership trends in Section 8 below.

On the infrastructure side, the lease modification progressed,
construction of the Garden Bar lift and regularization works
commenced and the contract for the extension of Hiram'’s Highway
was finally awarded. More details in Section 9 below.

Part Il contains the report of the Honorary Treasurer, Daniel
Chan, for the 2024-2025 Financial Year. As can be seen from that
report, the Club had another financially challenging year, with
earnings (before depreciation) of negative $3.3m, marking a second
consecutive year where operating expenses (before depreciation)
exceeded revenue.

Part 11l contains a business review. It includes an overview
of the Club’s financials over the past 10 years and provides an
explanation as to why operating expenses (before depreciation)
have exceeded revenue over the last two financial years, together
with the steps taken by the incumbent General Committee to bring
the Club back to an operating surplus in the next financial year.
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These steps include staff forganisational restructuring, which has
been implemented since January 2025, resulting in a reduction
in staff headcount of more than 20% (98 to 76) to date. Moves
are also afoot to modernize the Club's IT systems and workflow
processes, which should lead to improved operational efficiencies.

Key risks and uncertainties facing the Club are also identified in
the business review, including the pending renewal of the Club’s
private recreational lease in July 2027,

Part IV contains the Auditors Report, including the audited
financial statements for the 2024-2025 Financial Year.

To sum up, despite facing significant challenges, the Club’s core
operations and activities for the 2024-2025 Financial Year were
largely unaffected with notable achievements and advances made
in all areas and with revenue reaching an all-time high of $62.4
million. The steps taken by the incumbent General Committee in
the last quarter to address the operating cash deficit have already
proven to be effective and will be reflected in the financial results
for the 2025-2026 Financial Year.

In closing, | would like to thanks all members of the former and
incumbent General Committee and sub-committees for their
voluntary commitment and tireless efforts in steering the Club
through these challenging times, as well as our former and
incumbent general managers and all other staff of the Club for
their hard work and dedication. Last but not least, a big thank
you to all the volunteers, without which many of our events
would not happen.

| look forward to seeing you at the Annual General Meeting on 20
November 2025. In the meantime, do feel free to reach out if you
have any questions on this report by emailing me at commodore@
hhyc.org.hk or Jessica Yau at jessica.yau@hhyc.org.hk.

Sonny Payne
Commodore
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I. Summary of the Club’s Activities
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Key Statistics 24 it 8y

Financial Year HBIERE 2024 - 2025 2023 -2024
Financial R4
Revenue B HK$62.4 million HKS$60.2 million
Surplus/(Deficit) Eex/(E5&0)
Excluding Depreciation REIEIFE HKS$(3.3) million HK$(2.6) million
Including Depreciation 2I&IHFE HK$(12.3) million HKS$(11.0) million
Membership (Active) REEE
Including Cadet Members BESLEEE 1,196 1,202
Excluding Cadet Members A EESLEE 909 917
New Members #&8
Including Cadet Members BiES2LE8 93 94
Excluding Cadet Members AEREELEEE 60 45
24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race 24/\[F &=/ 2%
Donations to charity ISE2i TS S HK$684,368 HKS$663,865
Teams tCEEE 37 35
Keelboat race days BEBMESLLERH 25 26
Dinghy race days I\EESLLEXH 5 5
F&B Functions &EUEE 84 61
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L. Sail Racing and Regattas WU 7E 3¢

Dinghy and keelboat racing remain cornerstone activities of the
Club. Between April 2024 and March 2025, the Club hosted a total
of 30 race days, featuring three dinghy and eight keelboat events.
Figures 1a and 1b below provide a summary of the 11 events.

While participation in keelboat racing saw a slight decline
compared to the previous year, this was largely due to limited
boat parking availability at Shelter Cove, which deterred vessels
from Hong Kong Island from joining races in Sai Kung. Despite
this challenge, we were pleased to see strong engagement with
our Club-owned J/80 and VX One boats, which were consistently
fully booked for most keelboat events.
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Figure 1a: Summary of Race Days (April 2024 to March 2025)—Dinghies

[El1a :

Fed £k 202444 52025483

7N

No. of Actual Race
Days within the

period of Total Boats
Regatta/Series/ Event Dates Cancellations Apr 2024 to Entered
IR/ RFIR/ RS =L Mar 2025
7E20245F 4552025
FIFAAM AL
ES |

Dinghies /i
HHYC
Scallywag Foundation 11&12 May
Open Dinghy Regatta 2024 2024 5 924
SieREe 20244F
ScallywogFE=stE 5E 1-128
NESNMAAS A EE2024
24 Hour Charity Olftisgdf
Dinghy Race 2024 2024%F 2 37
AI\BES)\EE2024 0E19-208

16 SEP 2024
Bart’s Bash Regatta 2024 2 302 4 ﬂ? 1 24
AT ERIN A 2024 9165
Total Number of Race Days for Dinghy Events 5
INEELEE X Bt
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Figure 1b: Summary of Race Days (April 2024 to March 2025 —Keelboats
I 1b ¢ HRLk 20244E4H-202543H BEE AL

No. of Actual
Race Days within

the period of
Regatta/Series/ Event Cancellations Apr 2024 to
R/ RIE/BE HUH Mar 2025
2024545 F
2025 3R
it T3 4
Keelboats f2& it
24 Feb- 1
FAR {out of 5 total
Monsoon Spring Series 2024 2024
S5 55182024 2004 race days) 49
(BB R
28248= B5T)
48138
Leo Wealth Hong Kong
Open Ladies'/ Girls’ Champs 25 May 2024
Regatta 2024 20245 1 15
Leo Wealth ZEBLFT AFRNMA 58258
SIEE 2024
2 Jun-
UK Sailmakers 24 Aug
Typhoon Series 2024 2024 . 19
UK Sailmakers 2024
BREHRTIFE2024 6H28%E
88240
8-9 June
Hong Kong
Match Racing Nationals 2024 Qﬁgj; 2 z;;;g
SENNARRE024 688-98
lrace (Race2)
15 June- and 1day
Ming Hing Waterworks 10Aug2024 | cancelled due
Summer Saturday Series 2024 20244 to bad weather 4 44
PEAFEAEFHIIE2024 tAISBE | —IBEE (HE
8gI08 R—XRLEEX
RELARMEUH
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Figure 1b cont: Summary of Race Days (April 2024 to March 2025)—Keelboats
Bl1b () = FHAAE 2024445202553

HE

No. of Actual
Race Days within
the period of ;‘ot:l
Regatta/Series/ Event Cancellations Apr2024 to En?:r - d
R/ RIIR /B S BH Mar 2025 #Hfi
1E2024F4BE an
20255 3R RAMEY
R
Keelboats BEE#
Ming Hing Waterworks 21_22;;&'3
Port Shelter Regatta 2024 20047 2 37
BRIk E N E2024 9821-225
2o canctﬁ:; due
14 Dec 2024
Monsoon Winter Series 2024 Qoe;; to bad weather 3 33
FERIIF2024 E2BEE —XHEEX
126148 BELEEMm
EGH
11-12 Jan
Kowloon Cup 2025 2025 9 13
NAEEF2025 20256
181-128
1Mar-12 Apr 3
202 f4 total
Monsoon Spring Series 2025 2002 2 IQuof At
=S 25152025 5% race days) 33
3BIBE (IBLLE R &
48128 RAK)
Total Number of Race Days for Keelboat Events 25
EEMEtEE XY@t
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Major Event Highlights

HHYC Open Dinghy Regatta 2024

(11 & 12 May 2024)

This year's Open Dinghy Regatta set a new participation record,
with 224 boats and 277 sailors from 11 clubs and associations
across Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau, the USA, Singapore,
and France competing in 15 classes/divisions. Over 100 volunteers
dedicated their time to support this event.

A notable milestone was the debut of Sailfish’s GPS trackers on
all competing boats, which received overwhelmingly positive
feedback from participants and race officials. Additionally, this
regatta was the first in Hong Kong to enforce the HKSF’s newly
implemented Kill Cord Safety Policy, reinforcing our commitment
to safety on the water.

Leo Wealth Steering the Course Women’s Festival

(21-26 May 2024)

Co-organised with Sailability HK, this year's festival further solidified
its place as one of our flagship events under World Sailing’s
global initiative. Special thanks to Juliet Ashton and the many
volunteers whose tireless efforts made it a resounding success.

We expanded our reach by promoting the event not only in Hong
Kong but also in Shenzhen, where we received a congratulatory
letter from the Shenzhen Dapeng New District Women’s Work
Committee in recognition of our efforts to promote women'’s
sailing. The opening ceremony at our restaurant was packed,
and we welcomed numerous participants from Shenzhen and
Guangzhou to our race management seminar and Open Ladies’/
Girls’ Champs Regatta. We are also thankful to the Voyages Club
(Kwun Tong) for providing four DC29 boats to support the races.
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Bart’s Bash

(14 September 2024)

Held annually in memory of Andrew Simpson, a young sailor who
tragically lost his life in a sailing accident, Bart’s Bash has grown into
one of the largest sailing events worldwide. This year, 74 dinghies
participated in our fun-filled event organised in collaboration with
Sailability HK, with several keelboats also joining.

Hong Kong Match Racing Nationals 2024

(8-9 June 2024)

The 2024 Match Racing Nationals (MRN) was a success, featuring
seven competitive teams. Special thanks to Bob Vart for leading
the organising committee and to the Sailing Center team for
their flawless execution. We were particularly encouraged by
the increased participation from local Chinese keelboat sailors,
signalling strong enthusiasm for future editions.
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Annual Sailor Awards - Keelboats
We are proud to recognise the outstanding achievements and
contributions of our members in keelboat sailing for 2024:

Boat of the Year 2024

+ H,O(IRC Division)

« Harpseal (PHS Division)
Male Sailor of the Year 2024
+ Jason Chan

Female Sailor of the Year 2024
« Frances Hurley
Volunteer of the Year 2024

» Lizzie Sharp

Special Recognition Award
+ Kam Wai Hung

These awards celebrate excellence, dedication, and sportsmanship
within our sailing community.

FEALRMEDRE—RSH
BHEEMENRIBE0M4FESHE
FPRERENEAMRSHES:

2024 FEREESH

+ Hs0 (IRCABI)

+ Harpseal (PHS 48 81)
2024FEREBNMESHE
+ Jason Chan
2024FEREZNBESE
+ Frances Hurley
0UFEREST

+ Lizzie Sharp
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« Kam Wai Hung
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Lily Xu and Nicholas Halliday Named Honorary Member

Lily Xu

We are honored to welcome Olympic gold medalist Lily Xu (Ms,
Xu, Lijia) as our newest Honorary Member. As China’s first female
sailing gold medalist, Lily perfectly embodies the excellence and
sportsmanship that define our sailing community.

This special relationship began in April 2024 when Lily and her
coach/husband first visited our Club. During this memorable
visit, they met with the Sailing Committee, Sailing Development
Committee, and Sailability Hong Kong members, and shared
inspiring moments with Hebe’s youth sailors—creating an
unforgettable experience for all. The warmth and enthusiasm
from our members was truly remarkable.

Lily returned in December 2024 for an exclusive evening event
where she shared her extraordinary journey—from her early sailing
days to standing atop the Olympic podium. Her story captivated
the audience and left a lasting impression on our young sailors.
We are thrilled to have Lily as part of our Club family and look
forward to her active involvement in our programmes. Her
trailblazing achievements and passion for sailing will undoubtedly
inspire a new generation of sailors, particularly young women,
to pursue their dreams on the water.
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Nicholas Halliday - From Hebe Dragons to Paris Olympics
Nick began his sailing journey at Hebe Haven Yacht Club at age
seven. He started training on Optimists before transitioning to
sailing a Topaz within the Club’s fleet during weekends and after
school sessions. After 18 months of youth training at the Club,
he joined the Green Fleet Optimist Squad.

Winning multiple regattas in Hong Kong in both Optimist and
Laser classes as a youth sailor, Nick has become a household
name in the Hong Kong sailing community. His career highlight
came when he won the gold medal in the men’s ILCA event at
the Asian Sailing Championships 2023 (which also served as the
2024 Olympic qualifier regatta in Thailand), securing his Paris
Olympic qualification.

We wish Nick the very best as he begins his campaign to qualify

for the 2028 Los Angeles Olympics, and we are proud to have
been part of his sailing journey from its earliest days.
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2. Sailing Development 7§ B %8 i

The objects of the Club, as stated in its Articles of Association, ZFEHNRSENFE «AFTERE» fi
include “to support HKSAR’s elite sailors and to train future i 8% [ZR/EEHEDEENBE
generations of elite sailors capable of winning local, regionaland ~ E1&8 - 1 Sal@& F— B XA B EE
international sailing events” and “to enhance the HKSAR's image & SIS A0RE S - BIFAER
through the staging of local, regional and international watersports ~ WMEZE] - LR BEERBEN - E
competitions and regattas” . To this we add inclusivity, and the RIS K E ESHBERM MM E - L
goal to attract young sailors through our training programmes ~ BASERERS] - L5 BRFFH
and convert them through our membership pathways to become  SEMBESHEE SRS RS
Junior members of the Club and compete in our big boat racing.  FTIWESS  EALEXRETE
PR AFEEFLE WL
AU AR -

This chart gives a quick oversight of our training activities during the year and how they have increased
during the last year.
TEREENESE—FNBIIEELRE E—FREEERIER -

Sailing Centre Activity / Training programme Atigiziz:ce AtigiZf:ce
IRAE S chIEE)/28IHE 2023/24 80K 2024/258 A
Hebe Dragons sailing weekly,
2-4 times per week
Optimist Main, Intermediate & Green Fleet sailors,
ILCA (formerly known as Lasers,

1,44 1
J/80 Keelboats & VX One Performance Training 440 /660
B RS EN A FE2-47
FX YT EME - DR EADEEENHES
£ ILCA (LS Laser) ~J/80BESMFIVX Oneft 53l
Youth programmes &/ 2| 162 183
Community Sailing { EI4LEE) 677 756
Adult Sailing Programmes g L EEIEE 109 119
Summer Camps ES& 351 398
Total {8&t 2,739 3,116




Qur training programmes consist of:

« Optimist levels 1,2,3 &4

«Youth level 1,2 &3

« Multi Activity Weeks, are a great introduction to the Club and
watersports, including sailing, swimming, kayak, paddleboard,
beach games.

Our training fleets comprise:

RS

* SERIALT -2~ SR4TR

« BDFNAT 2R3

REHEYLIFMERFEKE
EE) - BEMA - B BRI
1o e -

BPIAISAIMER RS

Our training fleet consists of: Number
IEHl B HE
VX One 1
J/80 6
Laser gyem 13
RS Feva 4
Quest 10
Fusion 6
Optimists /Lt 42
29er 3
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Our sailors competed strongly both Nationally and Internationally
We sent teams to:

« Optimist Worlds

+ Optimist Europeans

+ Optimist Asians

+ ILCA4, 6, and 7 Worlds, Europeans, Asians and the Asian Cup.

Tiago Salgado won ILCA4 Asian Championship

More Hebe sailors were selected to join HKSI, congratulations to
Tiago, vy So, Sam Hardy, Cyrus Yung. When added to our existing
sailors in HKSI it makes a total of 9.

Our teams had a lot of fun racing in both our fleet of J/80’s and
the VX One.

Alfy and our Hebe Dragon’s came 3" in the Match racing Nationals.
Our VX One team, guided by Rafael came 2" in the RYHYC
Nations’ Cup.

Peter Jessop was 2™ in the ILCAT Asian Cup to our great former
Hebe Dragon, and Honorary Member Nick Halliday.

HMON M ESH S EE RS RIS
BPIERBHT
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National Regatta’s

Our own Hebe Open, is a festival of Sport, and continued to
attract more sailors than any other regatta in Hong Kong as the
event grows in stature within the SE Asian Circuit.

This year we had 231 boats (up from 207 last year) and 280 sailors,
with teams from Hong Kong, China, Taiwan, Macau, Thailand, and
Singapore and more than 100 Volunteers.

The ODR runs 4 race courses, accommodating all levels of
sailors, from Green Fleet and recreational sailors, up to the top
ranked National squad sailors competing in the HKLCA (Hong
Kong Laser Class Association) and HKODA *(Hong Kong Optimist
Dinghy Association).

Bart’s Bash Regatta is becoming a very popular race day for
club sailors to take part in races that have more than 75 boats
on one start line, something different to regular regattas in HK.

Our Club’s 24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race is always a popular
weekend on the sailing calendar; that’s a great way to sail for
charity and be part of the festival of sailing that generates
hundreds of thousands of dollars each year for the community.

Hebe Haven Yacht Club is the only accredited keel boat training
centre in Hong Kong for both Adults and Youth sailors. Our fleet
consists of 6 J/80s and one VX One. We have seen a continuing
growth in numbers signing up for this training and an increase
in the numbers of Community sailors signing up. This pathway is
a great way to meet other sailors some of whom have keelboats
at the Club.
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Summer Camps and school holiday programmes

Every school holiday, the centre runs multiple programmes for
all levels of sailors.

Whether you are a complete beginner, or a seasoned sailor
looking to further develop your skills, we always have something
for everyone to take part in these 5-day camps that are popular
with parents & their kids!

These programmes have helped to develop our club sailors to
either become a regular dinghy racer with the Club’s team Hebe
Dragons or become a recreational sailor looking to become more
involved in coaching, starting as an Assistant Instructor working
towards their Dinghy / Sailing Instructor qualifications, a pathway
that's very successful at HHYC over the years.
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Alfred Okoth

After 12 years of service to the Club, Alfred has decided to move
on and start a new chapter with his family here in HK.

It was an amazing journey that our Kenyan Head Race Coach
took with us at HHYC when he first started working for our Club
back in 2012. We are very proud to have had him be part of our
team over the years, and to see him grow and develop his own
skills, has been very rewarding to watch from the sidelines, for
everyone who was involved with the sailing centre during his
time at our Club.

Alfred helped us to get more international experience & exposure
for the Club sailors in the Hebe Dragons squads, and he was very
poplar not just with the sailors, but with the staff & members
of our Club.

We all want to wish Alfred the best of luck in his future, and his
legacy will be here forever.

As the saying goes, ONCE A DRGAON, ALWAYS A DRAGON,

None of this would be possible without the great contribution of
Rob Allen, and his team Queenie, Cali, and Pearl, coach J-war and
Clement, and our amazing Assistant Instructors, and the Bosun
team of Rafeal and Sean. | wish to thank the amazing support
we get from the parents who freely volunteer, particularly the
Team Leaders and those who give up so much time to support
our Sailing Development Committee.

Harvey Jessop
Sailing Development Committee
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3. 24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race 24/MNiE#535/IME 7§

The Club’s flagship event is undoubtedly its 24 Hour Charity
Dinghy Race. The idea for the race came from members Mark
Houghton and Roger Eastham way back after the start of the
new millennium. Bar talk, they say, but great ideas have to start
somewhere and this ‘idea’ celebrated its 21 Anniversary in 2024
The first iteration was held over the weekend of the 26 and 27
October 2002 and, with two omissions, the event has now become
a fixture on not only the Club’s calendar but also on the Pak
Sha Wan, and even Sai Kung, social scene. The event not only
features an endurance race on the water but also a colourful
shoreside village with activities and entertainment for everyone.

With local dignitaries and special guest in attendance the 2024
running of this event saw 37 dinghies crossed the start line at
1400 in perfect sailing conditions of 8 -10 kts of wind from the
northeast. 14 RS Quests, 10 Hansa 303s, nine RS Fevas, and four
Fusions where off and racing around a course of just over one
nautical mile, amongst the Club moorings. The object of the
race is for sailors to cover as many laps as they can before the
finish which was at 1400 on Sunday, 20 October. Sounds easy?
It certainly isn't and sailors ‘recovering’ from their shift during
the night and following day can be found ‘lights out’ in tents,
chairs, benches and even cars!
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Whilst the sailors are busy out on the water those who prefer
land under their feet were able to enjoy all the festivities of the
24 hourvillage. A DJ played tunes during the day, Live entertainment
was provided by school choirs, school bands and Jimmy2Times.
Dance demonstrations were given by Irish, Morris and even
Bollywood dancers. For the hungry, food was available from Ali
0Oli, the Enoteca Group, BJ's and the Club. The Club beer tent
was consistently busy throughout the weekend. On the huge
screen we also showed the final of the America’s Cup between
New Zealand and Great Britain, For those who preferred more
active pursuits, we saw a welcomed return of the raft race as well
as Sally G and her team conducting a high energy step reebok
and group fitbox session on the Sunday morning.

Marine industry businesses such as Piercey Marine and Harbour
Boats were able to exhibit their goods and services, amongst
numerous vendors of arts & crafts, sunglasses and even a
second-hand bookstore. The face painting and bouncy castle
were popular hits amongst the children in attendance.

The organisation that goes into fielding a team for this unique
event should never be underestimated. Nor should the amounts
of money raised for reputable charities. To give an idea, well
over HK$12 million has been raised in entry fees, from individual
donors and through donations by sponsors since the event’s
inception. This year, sponsors included St James’s Place, Knight
Frank, Piercey Marine, Corney & Barrow, Bon Café and Carlsberg.
Then there were the supporting partners—Royal Hong Kong Yacht
Club, Associagdo de Vela de Macau, The Clearwater Bay Golf &
Country Club, Sailfish Sports and the Oolaa Group.
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The divisional winner of the 14-strong RS Quest division was
Imperial Poona Yacht Club, with Boom Bangers 2™ and Zephyr’s
Whisper, 3. The Imperial Poona Yacht Club Team covered an
amazing 88 laps. In the RS Feva Division, HK Schools Sailing
Federation covered an equally impressive 84 laps with Hebe
Dragons Race Team #1 in 2™ and Sharks Team #2 filling the 3"
slot. French International School #2 won the Fusion division and
Volunteer 1 topped the Hansa 303s.

We had winning teams on the water but the event does not just
finish at the end of the race. Teams racing are asked to help raise
monies for the ultimate winners of the event the Charities. This year
event raised monies for; Children’s Cancer Foundation, TREATS,
IDEAL, Sailability Hong Kong and the Sai Kung District Community
Centre. Donations were accepted up until 1 November 2024 and
a presentation ceremony held on the 20 November at the Club
seeing Imperial Poona Yacht Club being crowned the overall
winner after taking into account handicap ratings amongst the
different classes of dinghies factored by the amount of money
raised by the team. Team Bishi Mizuiki won the charity cup for
the team that raised the most amount of money for charity.

What a great humanitarian event the 24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race
has become. What a great way to improve the Club’s standing
in the local community. And, perhaps best of all, what a great
way to show government that the Club is worthy of the public
land it occupies.

Thank you to all the sailors, volunteers, club staff, members
and their families who made the running of the event such a
great success.

Simon Robertson
24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race Committee
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4. Sailability Hong Kong ik

I can't really believe it’s that time of the year to submit news from
another year at Sailability Hong Kong.

Huge thanks as always to Hebe Haven Yacht Club, The Commodores
and the General Committee, members and staff who continue
to support our charity, which is now known worldwide because
of our dedication to those who now have the opportunity to sail
and the lives of many that we change. Whilst writing I would also
like to say a huge thank you to our volunteers without whom we
couldn’t do what we do, and the Sailing Centre, as we continue
to work and collaborate together at the only accessible and
inclusive Sailing Club in Hong Kong,

Our annual figures April 2024 to March 2025 reached almost
5,000 with 499 courses held on 244 days. Just a little short of
the previous year due to weather conditions. As always our
programmes included sailors with disabilities as well as others
with many life challenges from within our Hong Kong Community.
A very well- known saying of mine is ‘we don't say no, or can't,
we find a way to do it". This ethos has carried us forward for 16
years now and has made us who we are today.

Here is a recap of a few of the things | thought you may be
interested in hearing about over the past year:

During the first quarter we attended the HHYC Awards Night as
we honour and say thank you to sailors and volunteers for their
achievements and hard work during the year. Sailability Sailors
included those from our Para Sailing Team, neurodiverse/ASD
sailors etc and volunteers. We are still very proud to say that our
sailors ages range from 7 years old to 92 years old with some
seniors who have joined programmes have become amazing
volunteers in all aspects of Sailability, from sailors, maintenance,
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photography, promations and events, social media and of course
our Newsletter Team who consists of volunteers now living in the
UKI! Our eldest and very active volunteer is now approaching
80 in December. Well done Ah Kai.

MoHan joined the Spring Monsoon series which included races
in very varied weather conditions, enabling our crew to try
various strategies and different manoeuvres. It resulted in the
team being able to handle the boat more easily. We also saw a
great improvement in crew autonomy to decide the strategy
and the trimming,

Hebe Haven Yacht Club Open Dinghy Regatta - 11 & 12 May 2024
saw 3 of our classes entering this renowned Open Dinghy Regatta;
2.4mRs, Hansa Libertys and Hansa 303s. An amazing event
bringing all abilities together within the 231 boats participating.
The weather was mixed over the weekend and some great results
between all the fleets were seen. Special for us was to see one
of our female Para Sailors, LEUNG Yuk Chun, Sylvia coming in
firstin the 24mR Class.

This epic regatta was quickly followed by the 4" year of the World
Sailing Steering the Course, where alongside Hebe we encourage
more diversity and greater female and girl participation in all
aspects of sailing. We encourage more diversity and greater
participation of women and girls into sailing too. Sailability’s
figures were again very good, especially with the adverse weather
conditions we had to contend with: 145 female sailors and 40
female volunteers.
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29 June saw us taking part in our first offshore race to Macau!
The event, organised by the Cruiser Owners Association, saw us
sail to Macau on 29 June, with the return leg on Monday, 1 July.
Another first for us and one which was enjoyed by all sailing.

As usual MoHan was crewed by a mixed team of para sailors
and able-bodied sailors and on Leg 1, found herself in a sudden
squall. Skipper Fred and the team handled it all well, with
everyone onboard being fine, using the remainder of the trip
to dry out. MoHan arrived in Macau just as the sun was going
down, creating some beautiful skyscapes. One of the most
anxious moments for me on the voyage was going underneath
the 4 bridges when entering Macau as the tall main mast gets
quite close to the underside of the bridge structure! We did it
of course and are looking forward to the next one! We arrived
back safety on 1 July in 4 hours!!

July and August proved to be very busy months with summer
programmes being run. Our Scallywag Foundation Programmes
included Green Grass Music, Hong Kong Association of ADHD,
Sai Kung District Community Centre, Goldman Sachs programs,
Typhoon series, Jockey Club Sarah Roe teachers, Saturday Sailing
and Para Sailor training. We are very proud to see teenagers
from the ADHD and ASD programmes run during the summer
now joining our weekend sailing programmes as volunteers.
They are showing real dedication and enthusiasm in all they are
doing whilst supporting others. Another way we can change lives.

Sailability Hong Kong joined HHYC for the Government Open Day
on, 4 August, making this an accessible and inclusive great event
for all attending. There was a real buzz as volunteers welcomed
visitors, friends and family to this event. On offer from Sailability
were rides in Hansa 303 dinghies with an experienced volunteer
sailor and also trips out on MoHan, Our numbers were 50 sailors
and 24 volunteers offering support. Well done and thank you to
everyone who helped make the day a success!
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During the summer we also had some very sad news announcing
the passing away of Sailability Hong Kong’s Chairman Barry Hill
in the UK following a period of illness. He was a well-known and
much-loved figure in the Hong Kong sailing community. A former
Commodore at Aberdeen Boat Club, he took over as Chairman
of Sailability HK in 2021.

And then it was September and another year for Bart’s Bash
fundraising with HHYC. Checking back in our records | noted
that the first combined HHYC/SHKL Bart’s Bash took place in
2016 and, as of the end of 2024, 63 countries and territories
have participated in Bart's Bash worldwide over the years. 14
September 2024 saw HHYC with Sailability come 2™ in the rankings
for participation and donations. Go Hebe & Sailability HK!I!!

September also brought something different to the Club. For the
past 5 to 6 years Sailability Hong Kong has collaborated with the
Metropolitan University (MU - previously the Open University)
following a car park conversation with HHYC member Mr Kwong, a
professor of Physiotherapy at the MU! What a great collaboration
this has been for both organisations.

On Sunday 29 September 2024 the Physiotherapy Department
of Hong Kong Metropolitan University and Sailability HK co-
organised “Sail and Serve”, a celebration of the flourishing
collaboration between the University department and Sailability.
The HKMU was well supported at the Sail and Serve event
with many Physiotherapy students taking part and providing
on-the-spot services to diagnose individual issues for further
treatment, including bone density testing. Many HHYC staff and
some members also joined this diagnostic opportunity!! On
the water, during the course of the day, some 60 people tried
sailing in a dinghy (Hansa 303), 34 people had a trip on MoHan,
and 42 people went out on Hebe One. For those who wanted
to try sailing from the safety of the land, Sailability had set up
a Hansa 2.3 on the simulator.
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October began with much preparation for the forthcoming
International Hansa Class Asia Pacific Championships in Australia
and the 24hr Dinghy Race. Unfortunately, the 2" year of clashing
dates for Sailability’s International events and the 24 Hour Charity
Dinghy Race. However, with a great team working with us both
went off amazingly.

The International Hansa Class Asia Pacific Championships
took place in Australia from Monday 20 October to Saturday 25
October 2024 at the Southport Yacht Club, the Gold Coast. Our
team competed alongside sailors from Australia, New Zealand,
Japan and the USAin all four classes - Liberty, Hansa 303 single
handed male, single handed female, and Hansa 303 double
handed. Sailability Hong Kong were represented by a strong
and diverse team selected via Open Qualifying races organised
with the approval of HKSF's Selection Committee and supported
by LCSD. In Australia our hearts and minds were on Australia
and the wonderful success of our leading sailor FOO Yuen Wai
who won the Hansa Liberty class at the 2024 Hansa Asia Pacific
Championships. It was thrilling and emotional to see Wai take
the gold medal. Going back to Australia and winning such a
prestigious title was beyond our wildest dreams.

The 24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race once again saw a whirlwind
of activity and excitement, drawing large crowds and offering
entertainment for all ages. Huge thanks to our Volunteer Team
for making this a success whilst some of us were not in HK. It was
again so rewarding to see 10 of our Hansa 303s being sailed by 3
of the beneficiary charities at the event: Sailability Hong Kong,
TREATS and the Sai Kung District Community Centre with sailors
from their youth and seniors who join our regular programmes.
We extend our heartfelt thanks to everyone who has sailed,
supported, or attended the event. The cheque presentations
followed in November and it was very heart-warming to see
the outstanding success of FOO Yuen Wai, our World Champion
also being celebrated.
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Newly elected Vice Commodore Aaron Goach presented FOO
Yuen Wai with a glass vase to commemorate his win. Wai
graciously acknowledged the significant role of HHYC in his
success, highlighting the Club’s support in providing Sailability
with a home base and accessible facilities.

23 November 2024 saw Sailability HK's 15" Birthday Celebration.
Around 100 friends and supporters gathered at HHYC to celebrate
with us. This milestone marks not just another year of achievements,
but a decade and a half of dedication to making sailing accessible
for everyone, regardless of their abilities. The celebration featured
a wonderful BBQ lunch and drinks, followed by an auction to
raise funds for the team’s upcoming trip to Australia in March
2025 for the Hansa Class World Championships. This event not
only highlighted the community’s support but also served as a
reminder of the transformative impact Sailability HK has had
over the years.

Joseph Cheung was selected by Outward Bound HK for their
2024, 20lmpact20 expedition! The expedition, was initially
planned to head to Okinawa. However, due to a series of late-
season typhoons in South China, the Spirit of Hong Kong boat
turned back after three days at sea to ensure the safety of the
crew. When conditions improved, the crew chose an alternative
route to Kaohsiung and then circumnavigated Taiwan island
anti-clockwise. Joseph and the crew arrived back safely with the
monsoon conditions ensuring a speedy return journey. Despite
being the youngest crew member at age 18, Joseph performed
admirably during the voyage. His excellent boat driving skills
were highlighted by skipper Amelia Ralphs. This experience has
been a significant milestone in Joseph's sailing development
from joining an SEN programme in 2019 to where he is now.
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Sailability HK's Co Founder and CEO Kay Rawbone BEM was
appointed Chair of the World Sailing Para Sailing Committee.
Kay first heard about the appointment a few weeks earlier and
was overwhelmed. It was a real shock and at the same time
an honour, not just for me but all those who have worked and
supported us since 2009, to be where we are today on the world
stage. It really puts HK on the map for Para Inclusive Sailing.

The ABC 4 Peaks Race. MoHan was one of only 8 boats to complete
the race in January coming 1 in her class. Anamazing achievement
for our disabled and able-bodied team which included people
with conditions such as muscular dystrophy and polio sailing and
an SEN runner a lower amputee blade runner in his 70s. Celvin,
our 24 year old SEN runner, now has the accolade of being the
first person with a disability, in the history of this race, to run the
4 Peaks. Kay Rawbone was onboard as she has been for each
of the last 3 years when Sailability has taken part in the Four
Peaks Race. She said conditions this year were “the coldest and
windiest” compared to the previous 2 years. MoHan crossed the
finish line at 1:30pm on Sunday - after 27 hours of racing! HHYC
Treasurer has expressed an interest in joining us in January 2026!

World Champions - a very proud moment for us all

FOO Wai Yuen plus Leo Purdie and Joel Suarez Felipe have been
presented with their awards at the Hansa World Championships!
Wai is Hansa Liberty Open World Champion while Leo and Joel
took second place in the Hansa 303 para two person international
championship for athletes with intellectual impairment! An amazing
achievement for us and Hong Kong as we show the world the
accessibility, inclusiveness and diversity of our sailors to the world.
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Hebe Haven Yacht Club Celebrates Yacht Club of the Year Award
Whist in Sydney for the Hansa Worlds we received notification
of the wonderful recognition of Hebe Haven Yacht Club being
named at the Yacht Club of the Year at the Asian Marine and
Boating Awards. This award was a collective team effort from
everyone involved at the Club, who has been part of all the various
activities and events that Hebe Haven has organised over the past
12 months. It also highlights our commitment to Excellence in
Sailing, Sailability Hong Kong Limited, Youth Development, and
opening our doors to members of the local Sailing Community,
that we are striving to build at our club. Well done Hebe and
let’s keep working together to retain this award going forward.

Kay Rawbone BEM
Sailability Hong Kong
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5. Marine Operations 37

| am pleased to present the comprehensive highlights of another
exceptionally productive and forward-looking year for the Marine
Operations and Facilities Committee. Our unwavering focus has
remained on a triad of core objectives: enhancing our premier
marine facilities, championing environmental sustainability, and
meticulously ensuring our services evolve to meet the dynamic
needs of our valued membership. The collective efforts of our
dedicated Committee and staff have yielded significant, tangible
results across all these areas.

A landmark achievement underscoring our commitment to
sustainability was the successful commissioning of our first electric
sampan. This represents a major step forward in modernising
our club fleet. Powered by a robust 10kW motor and licensed
for 12 passengers, this new vessel seamlessly and quietly
transports members to their boats, significantly reducing our fuel
consumption and environmental footprint. To fully support this
green initiative, the Club’s Operations team oversaw a revision
of the sampan pontoon, adding a dedicated shore power supply.
This infrastructure is crucial, making charging convenient and
efficient, and ensuring the vessel is always ready for service while
eliminating generator use dockside for the club boat.
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Furthermore, the enforcement of last year’s revised bye-laws
has proven highly effective in cracking down on derelict crafts.
This decisive action, a key priority, has ensured our valuable
marine facilities are actively used by members. The removal
of unused boats has been instrumental in freeing up space,
which has directly and greatly contributed to reducing waiting
list times and queues. To build on this progress, we strategically
removed several offsite containers, creating valuable new space
for land-based boat storage. The results speak for themselves:
our average waiting list times for hardstand space have been
reduced by an impressive three years, while the average wait
for swing moorings has also been cut by two years.

Looking ahead, we are proactively reviewing our rules and
regulations to understand how the Club can offer greater
flexibility to accommodate the growing trend of members
owning larger vessels. Parallel to these infrastructural and policy
advancements, we have invested significantly in our team’s
capabilities through targeted internal training programmes,
including enhanced sampan safety and refined typhoon
preparedness procedures, ensuring we are always prepared
to provide a secure and efficient service. The Committee
remains dedicated to working in lockstep with management
to continually innovate and improve, ensuring our facilities
and services not only meet but consistently exceed member
expectations.

Eddy Lo
Marine Operations and Facilities Committee
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6. Powerboat and Hebe One #&8hs % €& i

It is with great honour that | present the annual report for the
Powerboat and Hebe One Committee for the 2024-2025 Financial
Year. This period has been defined by significant operational
improvements, enhanced member engagement, and an unwavering
commitment to safety, solidifying Hebe One's role as a vital asset
for our club members.

This year’s progress stands as a testament to the dedicated
efforts of the entire Powerboat and Hebe One Committee, |
extend my deepest gratitude to each member for their invaluable
contributions, meticulous planning, and the countless hours
volunteered to ensure Hebe One's continued excellence. Your
commitment is the cornerstone of our success.

Akey achievement this year was the highly successful inaugural
evening wine tasting event hosted aboard Hebe One This innovative
initiative offered members a unique and creative social setting
to connect against the stunning backdrop of Pak Sha Wan Bay.
The positive feedback highlights a strong desire for more such
non-sailing activities, and we are excited to explore further events
that leverage Hebe One's potential for community building.

Significant investment was also made into vessel safety and
performance with the procurement and installation of a new Bruce
anchor system, replacing the older model. This crucial upgrade
provides a substantial improvement in anchoring stability and
security. The Bruce anchor is renowned for its superior holding
power in sandy seabeds, which are typical of Hong Kong waters,
ensuring greater confidence and protection for Hebe One and
our members during all activities.
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The Committee's paramount priority remains the safety of our
members and the broader boating community. | would like to
take this opportunity to strongly reiterate the immense value of
the powerboat courses arranged by the Sailing Centre. These
programmes are indispensable for learning and refreshing vital
safe boating practices, which are fundamental to ensuring the
continued safety of all users in our waters.

As we look to the next financial year, our focus will remain on
diligently monitoring Hebe Oné's performance and identifying
further areas for enhancement. We are committed to maintaining
the highest standards of maintenance and operation to ensure
Hebe One remains a reliable, safe, and effective resource for all
maritime pursuits.

Thank you once again to everyone involved in making this year a
resounding success. Your continued support and dedication are
greatly appreciated as we eagerly anticipate another productive
and safe year ahead.

John KK Lo

Powerboat and Hebe One Committee
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7.Food and Beverage & ki)

It has been an interesting and challenging year trying to cut
expenses, whilst keeping up the standard of the food and service.

Thanks to the help of Oliver Schuhmann for reorganizing the
kitchen staff and making it a much more streamlined team, this
has been possible.

We launched the new quarterly menu and are now on the 2™
edition, which took in members comments and requests. We
hope you will enjoy it. We also now offer Chef Wo’s Daily Specials
and a Set Lunch Menu.

Our wine offerings are being reviewed and we hope to offer a
wider range of wines to please the varied tastes of our members.
We continue to have a Wine and a Beer of the Month,

It has also been a difficult year for events, with the lift construction
and the Garden Bar renovation, plus the unprecedented number
of Black Rain storms and Typhoons. We are doing our best under
the circumstances to continue holding events. We have many
things planned and have already held a couple of 'talks’ in the
Quarterdeck and hope to make them a monthly event.

Whilst the Garden Bar is out of action, we will make use of the
Food Truck that was donated to us. It has been fitted out by our
Marine Team and you will see it in use around the Club.

Thank you to the hard work of the Food and Beverage Committee,
the F&B Staff and to Carmen Chan our new Deputy GM (overseeing
F&B).

Carol Biddell
Food and Beverage Committee
BH=ET

BE—FRMELDIORE - TRAT
B BEMESAERS ARREER
FORFERCEE -

B4 Oliver Schuhmann B EE) - 44
BEETIRBETER E2RRE
AENER T RUER

RIEHSEHNFERE - RENS
ENSRAREE BARECENE
FRRA - LA BREREMANNE
BREFANFHESR -FLOMNEN-

BMEERS G EOHRE  FEAE
ARUEZRENETE LREER
RO - WA EEE S EEER
HEBAERE -

SEERTHBER - BETAHR
BIE- - TEAREN LR
BRFBABEASSOMERT  RiMDE
BEDRERETH - BMESYSE
Zi5E)  BEEEEREQuarterdeck s
WO IBHE  THRZAENSEBERN
FE—WAYEE -

EEBEREEER20E  BNHFH
ARBNEE - aFHEFTERE
BERZE AFULIEHSREIE-

HAENZEE - KREETLIRAN
FEREEREIVE (DEERARE
) MBI



47



8. Membership &£

Membership by category &83a5I

As at 31 March 2025, the Club had a total of 1,196 Members, which remained fairly constant throughout
the year, in the various categories shown in the table below. Senior Associate Members (at 616), Full
Members (at 227) and Cadet Members (at 287) comprise 94% of the total number of members.
HE05F38318 - ARHIEZE - N TEMT™ TFEFEAFELRSRE - BRZEZE (6I6A) ~ET,
TE (227A) AIBEZE (287A) (ELEHLAHH 94%-

Community Group Member SISRE M, 11 Temporary Member B35S, 0
Life Member §25% M, 14

Junior Member MEEEE, 2

Honorary Member HS8rS, 15

Term Member $EHIES, 8
Associate Member (I) EEE (), 2
Associate Member (Il EE&S (1), 5

1 Full Member I Senior Associate B Term Member I Associate |
M Associate I M Honorary Member M Corporate M Junior Member
" Cadet M Life Member B Community Group B Temporary

48



Membership changes over time

If we compare March 2025 with figures recorded in March 2015
we can see that, although the total number of members has only
dropped by 69, there has been a 22% decline in the number of
Full and Senior Associate Members, from 1,082 in 2015, to 843 in
2025. Thisis primarily attributed to the departure of members to
their home countries and although the club has recruited new
members the decrease is noticeable.

BEFRZ{EEEHE
2025F3FE2015EIFNEIF LT
BEGEABRELTOA BEXH
EREEREAFEEDP22% 522015
FEHN082 A/ R 2025FH)B43A -
EREREZERREEROAERE %
nEreEREETEs BREHENMA
BARRLD -

Membership Category FYE 2015 FYE 2025
BEER 2015 ABUERE | 2025 RABEES

Full Member [EFEE 412 227

Senior Associate Member EFREEZS 670 616
Term Member FEHEZE 2 8
Associate Member (I) ZEZE (1) 0 2
Associate Member (Il) EEZE () 2 5
Honorary Member #2&8 13 15
Corporate Member A5EE 6 9
Junior Member EFE8 3 2

Cadet Member @425 146 287

Life Member #2585 4 14
Community Group Member EfZ2 7 11
Temporary Member BR&S 0 0

Total #85t 1,265 1,196
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Membership distribution by age

If we look at the age demographics, it is clear that club membership
is aging, with 58% of members in 2025 being over 50 years old,
and 33% over 60 years old. This aging demographic of the Club
is thought to be attributable to the cost of boat ownership and
club membership generally exceeding the amount of spare
spending money young families now possess and the decrease
of the amount paid in ‘expat packages’.
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Comparing the demographics of FYE 2023 with that of FYE 2025,  2023F4EF0202584 RISt SIS RAT: -

itis clear that the greatest rise is in the Cadets (U18) and the two ~ S4GEERI (185LT) MIRMHEEE
groups (61-70) and (71-80). The club will be targeting Cadets to [ (61-708%) 70 (71-80%) A 2(0AFHE
get those qualified sailors to carry on membership in the (20-30) N -FSHLISELEEAEE BEL

year old category. SEBHNFEERB20-305FHERE
HEZE&ES-
FERER AH (2023£F) AH (20255F) AHE(E F1{EHH
Under20yrs 20851 F 25 9.47%
20-30yrs 20-308% 7 11 4 57.14%
31-40yrs 31-408% 38 41 3 7.89%
41 -50yrs 41-505% 173 156 17 -9.83%
51-60yrs 51-608% 343 301 -42 -12,24%
61 - 70 urs 61-708% 267 284 17 6.37%
- 80 urs 71-80m% 79 93 14 17.72%
Over 80 yrs 80l 14 14 0 0.00%
Unknown age SR 20 7 - -
Total #85t 1,205 1,196 -9 -0.75%
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In respect of the distribution of members by residential area, Sai Kung kR EHESRS  B2EEREWNMS
and the rest of the New Territories hold the greatest percentages.  EfEEFFHAMIMNE -

Membership distribution by residential area
BEREHMER

Outside Hong Kong & 15MbE 0.5%

Sai Kung
BEEB
33%

Although 93 new members joined in 2025, this was off-set by ~ {@E2025FHRSHEENA BEL
a total of 105 members cancelling their membership or going ~ RE®FISEZEEHTEFBHBNR

absent, as detailed in the tables below: RREESMEN R =
MEEAY HEBAH
Senior Associate Member ™ Senior Associate Member EREEZE | 21
RATEER Full Member EEXE&SE 8
Cadet Member B4 &8 33 Cadet Member B4 @S 30
Term Member fEH&S 8 Term Member EHEE 3
Associate Member (Il) EEZE (1) 1 Honorary Member SR8S %
HonotenHEmber S WA : Community Group Member EEEE 2
Communit Group Member 3 Number of absent members
Total #Bat 93 | | seniorAssociate Member EFEEZE | 31
Full Member EEX&S 9

- Total #@&t 105




Analysing these cancellations further, we have identified several TEBETZEEHZREOEEIER
main reasons and these are laid out in the following pie-chart. RPN EEEARTEIE Hdb
42% of those leaving the club have expired their membershipand ~ T EE#RESEEEN A ST 2
these could include Cadets who have left to attend universityor ~ BIES-

take up employment elsewhere.

Reasons for cancellation of membership
HEERE

Increase of
membership fees
EEIEN

1%

Lost interest
in sailing
HUELEED
1%
Inconvenient
location
MEFE
1%

Way Forward FRI5A

The club continues recruitment with various schemes toencourage  FERSRBEBEFEE - AT IE
members to introduce new candidates. During interviews, itis  HSEE RRSEMEHESEAG -

clear that new members are keen in introducing theiryoung family ~ #FTZEETEED  EZMNBANEE
members to the sport of dinghy sailing and it is very apparent ~ REREFLHFERSTBINME
that the ease of access that HHYC has to a working docksideand &) MZEZERNFHEDEERENER
marine operations area is very popular with new candidates. SITHEBAE-

Mike Sharp
Honorary Secretary
EEWE
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9. Planning and Works ¥l #1% T2

The following key planning and works activities were undertaken
during the 2024-2025 Financial Year:

« liaising with government and preparation for resumption of
land associated with the Hiram’s Highway widening project
("Hiram’s Highway Widening");

progressing the application to modify the Club’s land lease (the
“Lease Modification Application”);

progressing with the construction phase for the regularisation
of the Garden Bar annex (the “GB Annex Regularisation
Project”); and

conducting a tendering process and awarding a contract for
repair works to the existing marina piles (the “Marina Pile
Repair Project”).

Hiram’s Highway Widening

After some delay, the Government finally approved the funding
for the dualling of Hiram’s Highway from Marina Cove to Sai Kung
Town and in early December 2024 awarded the contract for the
detailed design and construction to China State - AICL - CSCEL
Joint Venture (the “China State JV”).
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Construction is planned to commence in February 2026 following
a 14-month design phase, with an anticipated completion date
of August 2031. Meetings between the Club, China State JV and
the Highways Department have already been held to discuss the
interfaces with and impacts on the Club.

The Club has been assured that pedestrian and vehicular access
to the Club will be maintained at all times throughout the
construction phase and that such accesses will essentially remain
at their current locations for the permanent case, albeit with the
pedestrian entrance being pushed further into the existing land
boundary of the Club due to land resumption.

The biggest impact to the Club will be caused by the resumption
of land at the back of the kitchen in the Club’s restaurant, which
currently serves as a refrigeration storage space and food
preparation area. In anticipation of this loss, the Club has already
converted the former staff changing rooms into a large walk-in
fridge / freezer on the ground floor. We are also liaising closely
with the design team of China State JV to maintain the operation
of the access doors from the back of the kitchen, which allow for
easy access to the walk-in fridge / freezer.

Reinforced earth retaining wall to be
constructed behind the restaurant kitchen
| BEER®S: SR

Pedestrian accessto the Clubto be
reprovisioned on new land boundary
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Impacts of Hiram'’s Highway Project on the Club
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Lease Modification Application

The Club operates under a private recreational lease (“PRL").
The PRL stipulates that the area covered by buildings and above-
ground structures shall not exceed 528.6 square meters (sqm).
This permissible site coverage is already exceeded by the existing
Clubhouse (covering 430 sqm), coupled with the existing boat
racks (the “Boat Racks”) (covering 407 sqm).

This site coverage constraint imposes a serious impediment to
the development of the Club and has led to two orders from
the Lands Department to demolish the Garden Bar tent: once
in 2015 and again in 2022.

The objective of the Lease Modification Application—submitted in
September 2022—is to increase the permissible site coverage to
1,406 sgm; thereby enabling the Boat Racks to be retrospectively
approved and permitting a permanent two-storey building (the
“Regatta Deck”) to be erected in the area previously covered by the
Garden Bar tent—currently covered by a series of removable canopies.

RNISETHE

IR FLNATERIFHSUD (‘PRL) B
B «RABHBH R RE BR
A S EEASHIB528.6 K .
MIEBEEM (G430 54K) NER
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= 1 Existing Building
3 REEH

MBRSEAAR

Proposed Regatta Deck

Elements covered by Lease Modification Application (shaded grey)
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The Lease Modification Application was originally expected to be
in place by the end of 2024, however, is pending completion of
the irregularities with the Garden Bar annex building (see below).
Itis currently expected to be approved by mid-2026.

Given the pending renewal of the PRL on 1 July 2027, construction
of the full-scale Regatta Deck will inevitably need to be deferred
until the new lease is in place. In the interim, the Club intends to
apply to install a fixed canopy structure over the Garden Bar area
to replace the current somewhat unsatisfactory arrangement of
removable canopies.

RS DB R 2024 FET
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GB Annex Regularisation Project
The Garden Bar annex and the extension to the Clubhouse balcony
was constructed in 2010.

Extention to balcony
Wi ,

el =GB Annex (built2010)
TEEBIEH BRI (RI20105)

= Garden Bar & Storerooms
TEEEIETEN =

In order to comply with the Buildings Department design code for
barrier-free access (enacted in 2008 as a result of the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance), the approved design for the Garden
Bar annex included a lift to permit barrier free access from the
restaurant to the offices and washrooms below. The lift, together
with statutory mandated fire-fighting services for the store rooms,
are required to be completed before the occupation permit for
the Garden Bar annex can be obtained.

The objective of the GB Annex Regularisation Project is to obtain
the completion certificate / occupation permit for the Garden Bar
annex in advance of the renewal of the PRL in 2027, The design and
tendering activities were completed in late 2023 and a contract
was awarded to Tong Kee Engineering Limited in April 2024,

The GB Annex Regularisation Project was originally intended to
be completed by late 2025. The project has, however, experienced
delay and is now expected to be completed by April 2026.

Extent of Clubhouse (1989-2010)
SERE (1989-2010)
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Marina Pile Repair Project

The 52 marina piles were installed more than 30 years ago. The
protective coating on many of the piles is damaged with visible
corrosion on most, particularly in the tidal zone (0mPD to +2.5mPD).
There is also the issue of increasing sea levels during typhoons,
asillustrated by Typhoons Hato and Mangkhut in 2017 and 2018,
respectively. During the latter typhoon, the marina came within
approximately 700mm of overtopping the piles.

Corrosion/wear of marina piles
B/ BN

Replacing the marina piles would be costly—in the order of HK$50
million—and the Club, upon the recommendation of the PWC,
has decided to defer replacing the marina piles at least until after
the lease renewal in 2027 and, perhaps more importantly, when
the Club has clarity on the land premium that may be levied.

Following a tendering process, a contract was awarded for the
repair of the marina piles on South Dock in March 2025.
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Introduction

The 2024-2025 Financial Year covers the period from 1 April 2024
to 31 March 2025, The incumbent General Committee was elected
around the midpoint of this financial year, in November 2024.

Auditor’s Report

The Club’s Financial Statements are audited annually by
auditors approved at the previous Annual General Meeting. For
the 2024-2025 Financial Year, the Club’s auditors continue to
be Wong Brothers CPA Limited, which has completed its audit
of the Club’s Financial Statements.

The Club’s auditors have gathered adequate and relevant audit
evidence to support their opinion that the Club’s Financial
Statements present a true and fair view of the Club’s financial
position as of 31 March 2025, as well as its financial performance
and cash flows for the financial year.

The General Committee approved the Club’s Financial Statements
by written resolution on 25 July 2025. Members are encouraged
to review the Financial Statements, which are contained in the
Auditor’s Report at Part IV of this Annual Report.

I would like to thank the Club’s auditors for their professionalism
and completion of the audit.
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Financial Performance Overview

In 2024-2025, the Club continued to face economic challenges
in Hong Kong, with financial results impacted by member
attrition and changing consumer behaviour. This report
details audited results, key trends, and strategies for long-
term financial stability.

While the Club reported a 3.6% increase in revenue, reaching
HK$62.4M compared to HKS$60.2M in 2024, the profitability
was affected by non-BAU expenses (HK$3.8M vs. HK$0.2M)
and depreciation costs (HK$9M).

The EBITDA loss increased from (HKS$2.6M) in FYE 2024 to
(HKS3.3M) in FYE 2025, with the annual deficit totaling HK$12.3M,
representing an 11.8% year-on-year decrease. This decline is
primarily attributable to heightened depreciation expenses
associated with prior capital expenditures.

MISRIRIE
2024-20255f - A 2T EHNSELE
WRNSERT MERERZEAEE
BIHESTREENENZHEE -+
FERTERZYER TEER DR
HERHR AR RS REGUERES -

E120245E#)60,200,00058 T8t &
WA RE3.6%I8 /K EF 62,400,000
BT MEAENNSEFOEESH

(3,800,000 7E4£5200,00038 7T) 703
B4 (9,000000587T) -

FHEAIWSEED2024BERED
2,600,0008TIRINE2025FFH
3,300,000 % - FEESHES 12,300,000
B BERERFTRI.Y BEXEHHE

e RIREA S HERETES = P -
Key financial results are below:
TERFEEENT:
Financial Performance - key financial results
s B - R A
Key financial results 2025 FYE 2024 FYE
IEBRBES _ 2025 RBIFE 2024 FIBEE
&e}'\enue HK$62,411,797 HK$60,246,525
e RdEIEEeNeE: HK$3,033,001 HK$3,191,630
g{tgzg eegs%egg;ﬁxpenses HK$58,971,623 HK$59,466,075
e HK$3,752,996 HKS181,273
T HOCII[ERITEA (HK$3,345,913) (HKS2,592,453)
%‘gg%’%grgm (5.4%) (4.3%)
%ege‘:ia”o” HK$8,964,649 HK$8,421,741
E;;gﬁ?r the Year (HK$12,310,562) (HKS11,014,194)
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Revenue - key variances (FYE 2024 vs FYE 2025)
WA — EEER (024 BFERER2025WBEELR)

Total Revenue 2025: HKS 62.4M (compared to 2024: HK$60.2M) 2024
2025RAEREREARILN | 62,400,0007% 7T (18EE20244 BN : 60,200,000%7T)

The bar labels indicate the % of total revenue for relevant financial year. . 2025

IR R B AR AL Yot
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R I—T
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Lo RERE
Marine income
Sail training income 8.4%
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WAL, .o
Bank interest income x
STRIBA m—
Minimum Food and Beverage 219
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Others (Penalty, admin fees. atc) 0.8%
Bit (@w - iTEoes) = 0%

Overall, revenue increased by 3.6% to HK$62.4M (2024: HKS60.2M),
driven by higher marine rental income (HK$25.2M, up 5.0%),
members’ subscriptions (HK$14.4M, up 4.5%), racing and course
fees (HKS0.8M, up 80.3%), bank interest income (HK$2.1M, up
21.5%), entrance fees (HK$3.8M, up 2.7%) and food and beverage
sales (includes F&B Minimum) (HK$10.4M, up 6.1%).

EREmMS WARBINI.6% EE
62,400,000385% (20248 FUERE :
60,200,000%7T)  REREEMEERE
UL (25,200,00085% EFAS%) &
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Operating Expenses - key variances (FYE 2024 vs FYE 2025)
BESH — FEEA (0240 BEER2025MEEELR)

Total Expenditure 2025: HK$74.6M (Compared to 2024: HK$71.1M) 2024
2025fIEVEE B ¢ 7460000058 (18H52024R4 ISR « 71100,00075T)

The barlabels indicate the % of total operating expenses for relevant financial year. . 2025

ST R B S RO 4 L Yol

in million HKD SRR - 5 10 15 20 5

Salaries and benefits

a0 35 40 45 50

E0.4%
1 N .Y

Depreciation
fiii ]
Cost of food and beverage 450
w®ONE 4
Club promotion expenses 1
iR
mooring retal anm&& gml%gs
Cost of sailing and racing 1.8%
WREEORF DS 2%
Security expenses
frEmm
Lilities 2
AFIEE .
Repairs and maintenance
TR
Insurance 2
2% . I

Others 9.5%
Hif) I | 2%

According to the data in the above chart, operating expenses
increased by HK$3.5M or 5%, reaching $74.6M in FYE 2025.

1R ik EEEE - 202 SRR Ry
B HIE103,500,0008THY%  EE
74,600,00058 -



The following is an analysis of the contributing factors.

Cost of Goods Sold

The Cost of Goods Sold (CGS) margin declined from 32.7%
in 2024 to 29.3% in 2025, mainly due to a reduction in food
and beverage costs from HK$3.2M to HK$3M through cost-
optimization measures.

Business As Usual expenses

The Business As Usual (BAU) expenses slightly decreased by
HK$494,000 or 0.8% to HK$59,000,000, primarily as a net result
of the following:

+ Club promotion expenses decreased by HK$205,000 or 37%
to HK$300,000.

« Club functions expenses decreased by HK$220,000 or 51.2%
to HK5$200,000.

« Repairs and maintenance costs decreased by HK$280,000
or 10.6% to HKS2.4M,

« Security expenses decreased by HK$535,000 or 20.7% to HKS2M.,

« Staff welfare expenses decreased by HK$293,000 or 14.5%
to HKS1.7M.

« Sundry expenses (IT infrastructure & staff training expenses)
decreased by HK$591,000 or 28% to HKS1.5M.

« Transportation costs decreased by HK$42,000 or 34.4% to
HK$80,000

« Utilities costs decreased by HK$91,000 or 5.5% to HK$1.6M

+ Cleaning and sanitary expenses increased by HK$118,000 or
14.9% to HK$900,000.

« Cost of racing increased by HK$160,000 or 39.5% to HK$600,000.

« Cost of sail training and J/80s increased by HK$186,000 or
21% to HKS1.1M.

« Salaries and wages increased by HK$1.4M or 3.7% to HK$39.1M,

LITRHR @SRRI -
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Non-Business As Usual expenses

There was a notable increase in professional fees, rising
by HK$3,462,000 (531.4%) to HKS$4.1M. This escalation was
primarily attributable to consultancy fees incurred since 2022
associated with the Club’s projects, in particular for the clubhouse
modifications and regatta deck, which had previously been
treated as a capital expense, but which were transferred from the
balance sheet to operating expenses to reflect the fact that the
projects were unlikely to be realized in the foreseeable future.

This financial year includes HK$93,000 in non-BAU expenses for
Pak Sha Wan Centre rental, reflecting lease liability under the
remaining two years of a three-year contract. As required by
HKFRS 16 (effective 1 January 2019), lease assets and liabilities
are recognized for agreements over 12 months. See Note 15
on page 27 of the Financial Statements for details. This change
meets regulatory requirements and accounts for the financial
impact of long-term leases.

Capital Expenditure

FesEES T
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Capital expenditure falls into two categories #xH
lacement of existing assets; and SRR

; iiqp uisition of additional asset:; ;ii?;?;iﬁ

Five highest items of Capital Expenditure (incurred in FYE 2025)
2025 BEEERNARERIH
No. & ‘ Item IRE ‘ Amount &8

1 Elecg;;ﬁgpa” HK$732,000
5 Coldg};rgﬁgg;aﬁglities HK$620,450
3 Changzgkgé%g%:ilities HK$326,036
4 ShCIRRDRes HK$210,972
:
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Depreciation
Accumulated depreciation increased by HK$543,000 or 6% to
HK$8.96M, due to the following factors:

1. Cold Storage Facilities HK$168,000
2. Changing Rooms Refurbishment HK$213,000
3.6 No. of Fusion Dinghy HK$45,000
4, 17 No. of Jetski Trolley HK$22,000
5. Glass window for the Balcony HK$58,000

Summary

The financial results indicate that Club has been navigating
uncertainties and complexities arising from shifts in Hong Kong's
economy for the past year. The continued annual deficit further
reinforces the urgent need for prudent financial management,
innovative business and operational strategies, and perhaps
difficult decisions ahead.

Moving forward, we will focus on sustainable financial practices,
cost optimization, and diversified revenue streams to improve
EBITDA performance. | am confident that with the continued
collaboration of our dedicated team, stakeholders and strategic
partners, we can navigate these challenges and emerge stronger
to uphold member value and drive sustained engagement.

We will approach the coming year with greater operational
efficiency and innovation, and a shared vision for financial
stability and growth.

In Appreciation

The responsibilities of the Honorary Treasurer are greatly
facilitated by the professionalism and commitment of the Club’s
accounting staff. | would like to express my sincere appreciation
to Carol Chan and her team for their unwavering support.

Daniel Chan
Honorary Treasurer
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Introduction

The business review for the Club for the 2024-2025 Financial
Year— prepared pursuant to Section 388 and Schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)—is set out below.

All financial data used in this business review has been extracted
from the Club's audited financial statements for the 2015-2016
to 2024-2025 financial years, the latter which is contained in
Part IV of this report.

Overview of the Club’s business

The Club is a non-profit organization and operates as a company
limited by guarantee. As such, the Club’s objective is not to
make a profit, but to provide a service to its members and
promote access to sailing and other watersports to the Hong
Kong community at large.

Nonetheless, in order to be financially sustainable, it is imperative
that the Club generates a financial “surplus” from its day-to-day
operations to provide for future replacement / expansion of its
assets and facilities.

The Club’s operations can be divided into three primary
business streams:

(i) marine services, comprising the renting of swing
moorings, marina berths and hard-standing space, and
provision of boatyard facilities (“Marine Services”);

(i) food and beverage services from the operation of the
Club restaurant and events (“F&B [ Events™); and

(iif) sailing activities, comprising sail training, sail racing
and J/80 / dinghy hire ("Sailing Activities”).
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These three business streams typically account for 60-65% of ~ E=AXFEEBEFZRILNEIONE
the Club’s revenue, with the remaining revenue being derived ~ 65%  HERBA T ERESENADE -
primarily from subscription fees and entrance fees. Asummary BEOFFBFEBYNIRETE -
of the Club’s annual revenue over the past 10 years is provided

in the charts below.

Total revenue over the past 10 years
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Breakdown of total revenue over the past 10 years
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It can be seen from the above charts that, over the past 10 years:  #E EBOIR - TEEKI0FD:

« the Club’s total revenue has progressively increased from $52.0m  » FZEUALES 200B T EHIENE
to $62.4m), representing an average increase of 2% per year; 62408578 7T TI9EEILR%;

« revenue from Marine Services has increased from $17.2mto  + JEFREBUAM 7208 TIZE2.520
$25.2m, representing an average increase of 4.5% per year BB WISFRR4.5%  BAISE
and now accounts for 40% of total revenue; WIABY40% ;

+ revenue from F&B Services has suffered a gradual decline from  + BEERERFWIALEL240EB TR L T
$12.4m to $10.4m, falling from 24% to 17% of total revenue; ~ E1.040E/B T  FE@UIAPEILLAVGE
« revenue from Sailing Activities was initially steady at an 2A%FEE17%

average of approx. $3.4m per year from 2016 to 2021, then  + IASSENAZE2016Z2021 5 RIEAIR
almost doubled in 2021-2022 to $6.6m, but has since gradually ~ RFRE  WIIBFHR0BET I
declined and now stands at $5.1m, accounting for 8% of ~ #&#E2021-2022 F RS FEBE660%

total revenue;

BT BIEES TR BAIRSIOEE

« revenue from subscriptions and entrance fees has increased 7o 1GHIRHIABIB% :

marginally, from $16.7m to $18.2m, representing approx. 19%  * ZEFAAZEBAZFIEN - 41,670
per year, with the overall contribution to total revenue falling BETIEE 8208 B SFENIEND
from 329 to 29%. 1% FERW AP FIHE32% =

T2

29%-



Despite a progressive increase in revenue over the past 10 years,  {REBEIVEW A\ RFH1LE BN TE
as llustrated in the chart below, the Club’s operating expenses  fimm A@HEESH (REEYL -/

(excluding depreciation of property, plantand equipment) have =R znpirEs) 12ERRU A - B20235

increased at a much faster rate and since 2023, have exceeded kBB FAVEL -
the total revenue generated by the Club.

Revenue vs Operating Expenses (excluding depreciation of property, plant and equipment)

BERE (FEENE - BERRERE)

70,000,000 67,220,652,

54,222,873
65,000,000
59,100,275 90766125
56,906,577
60,000,000 57,054,974 56,820,580 60,246,525
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55,000,000
0000 52,017,900 55487452
53,022,991
50,000,000 50,843,301
48,519,017 48,926,723
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40,000,000 42,037,794

38,023 541 39,666,936
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30,000,000

201516 201617 201718 201819 201920  2020-21  2021-22 202223 2023-24 202425
= PRavenue LA,  =——Operating Expenses excluding deprediation of property plant and equip EWETH (FEENH - BERREITE
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This cashflow deficit is primarily attributable to increases in
salary and staff-related costs, which have almost doubled over
the past 10 years (from $22.8m to $43.1m) and now account
for 66% of total operating expenses.

ZERERTFEIERERFE08TH
BRARABNIEN - SZAL AR EIOFPiEF
{812 (fe2,280B B TIZEA 3108/ ET)
ERNSIREES HEI66% -

Salary & Staff-related Expenses over past 10 years

BETFRTHENEMEE
580,000,000
$67,229,652
$70,000,000
560,000,000
562,411,797
$50,000,000
2 $52,017,909 Op g Expenses
40,000,000 WESH (rasew . aEzsasw
543,083,717
$30,000,000 i $41,989310
& Salary & Staffrelated £ § $33,695,242
20,000,000 25,483,490 BiE-+HER TS TEMEH
$22,715,069
$10,000,000

o
2015-16 2016-17  2017-18  2018-19 201920 2020-21

With the Club’s operating expenses (excluding depreciation)
exceeding revenue since 2023, both the cash flow deficit and
capital expenditure has been funded from the Club’s cash
reserves, which have reduced from $61.2m as of 31 March 2023
to $47.2m as of 31 March 2025.

2021-22 202223 2023-24 202425

BRFEE023FEEESY (FE8
FEE) BRE A BefinsilEdszH
BiERFENREEERD SNERE
FEHHE20235E3F318/6,120B B TR
025 3F3I0H4,720EE T

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (excluding deposits held for marine facilities)
FERESIRSERY FEFESERHEE)

HKS
90,000,000
79,103,931
80,000,000
68,742,442
70,000,000 59,292,488

60,000,000 70,894,803
50,000,000 54,584,400 63,197,804
40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000
10,000,000

0
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The incumbent General Committee fully recognizes that this
state of affairs is unsustainable and, since December 2024, has
embarked on cost cutting measures, primarily focusing on staff
restructuring, which has resulted in a reduction of permanent
staff headcount by more than 20%. Due to long-service payments,
the impact of this restructuring was not felt in the 2024-2025
Financial Year, however, is expected to come to fruition in the
2025-2026 financial year.

Based on the financial results for April to August 2025, the Club
has returned to cash-flow positive status and is projected to
achieve a small surplus in the 2025-2026 financial year.

RESTESE+HSEAERIA R
A BEB04F25RCEBFRER
FHTE SN TEMES TRIEE
B EERETARELT0%L -8
RETSL(TRIRES  ILRREER
BIS I AR ARIRFE 2024 - 2025 8
BIRIFEZEIE D - {BFE5HI§7E2025 - 202677
BB N -

RIB2025F4I0 AWM HEEE &
FEWEERIRE MARR - 78512025 -
2026 BIR/ SRR -

Revenue vs Operating Expenses (excluding depreciation)

WAREESZHELE (REERE)
70,000,000 67,229,652
Operating Expenses (aucluding depreciation) BEE%H (FESH) Projected
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The ultimate goal is for the Club to achieve a cash-flow surplus
of around $5m to provide sufficient capital for the periodic
replacement of assets, such as mooring chains, marina pile
protection, cranes, forklifts and safety boats. This goal is
expected to take a further 3-4 years to achieve and is largely
dependent upon the Club’s success in upgrading its IT
systems / club management software and reforming its work
flow processes, which are currently highly labour intensive,
leading to inefficiencies. To this end, the Club commissioned
a consultant in August 2025 to assist it with its IT upgrading
and work flow reforms.

2024-25 2025-26

Expenses (excluding depreciation) @@ (T @IEHHH)

FENRRERERIEN00EETH
REhmek HH0E - BRETREE
B EEN YERNEESEENES
ERREHARES - ZEREEE4
FAERE BEERARE LERRS
SAEBMINFHRI TR/ QSRR
WHEER TEfE—RARESS
BEEES ZRUEET R+
[R2025F 8RS — SR - HAlEE
TRAFRRITIERENS -
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Fair review of the Club’s business for the 2024-2025 Financial Year ~ 2024-2025@iBIEEFBNREBTR
The total revenue for the 2024-2025 Financial Year was $62.4m, 2024 -2025BAEIEEIBUL N R6, 240858
representing an increase of $2.1m from the previous year. A 7o BLE—FIE12108E T - REEHE
breakdown is provided in the chart below. BFEE®-

Breakdown of Revenue for 2024-2025 (Total = $62.4m)
2024-2025I A DHE (AU A = 6,24083)

Subscriptions & & A (23%)

Marine Services SEEULA, (40%)
14411842

25168341

Entrance Fass A @ (6%)
3833169

Bank Interest §{7H8, (3.5%)
2,112,087

Car Park Fees (S EUBILA, (1.5%)
862776 /

Others Bt (196)
566,884
Sailing Activities WLRSEED (8%) F&B Services EARIREE (17%)
5,099,320 10357378

The Club’s operating expenses (excluding depreciation of =~ 2024-2025fHFRAZEELH (FE
property plant and equipment) for the 2024-2025 Financial &% - BERAEITE) 85167208
Year amounted to $67.2m, broken down as follows: b= pavili = iU

Breakdown of Expenses for 2024-2025 (Total = $67.2m)
2024-202537 HA 3R (H@sZH=6,7208)

Others m(m
Professional fees m (6%6)

113,795

Cleaning & sonitary mm (1%5)

908,337

Marine licence fees XEEERPARER (2%6)
1362405 Staff Salaries & related cost
Rentol of PSWC Bmm (2%5) SN EAEBMBEE (64%)
65,167 43,083,717

Repairs and maintenance mxm (4%}

Utilities *Inﬁtzm |
76479 -~ r
Insuronce mta%;
1,742,767

Sailing octivity expenses MSEIIHEZ(Z%}
1,635,007

Food and beverage costs SRETRRE (5%6)
3,033,091
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The net deficit was therefore $4.8m which, as explained above,
was funded from the Club’s cash reserves.

Further analysis of the 2024-2025 financial results is contained
in the Honorary Treasurer’s Report at Part Il of this report,
which is incorporated into this business review by reference.

The summary of the main activities of the Club during the
2024-2025 Financial Year provided at Part | of this report are
also incorporated into this business review by reference.
Activity in all three primary business streams was strong, with
demand (and revenue) showing no sign of falling. That said,
when viewed in isolation, it is apparent that the F&B / Events
and Sailing Activities business streams turned record deficits
$5.1m and $3.2m respectively for the 2024-2025 financial year,
while Marine Services turned a healthy surplus of $12.3m.

In effect, the F&B / Events and Sailing Activities business streams
are subsidized by the Marine Services business stream. While
this situation has persisted for at least the past 10 years, the
extent of the acceptable subsidization is currently under scrutiny
by the Finance Committee, In the short term, the extent of the
deficits for the current financial year have been significantly
reduced by a combination of staff restructuring and changes
in the Club’s F&B offering.

Bt F T R4808E T W LTI B
BEFHFENREEEES-

12024 - 2025 ERAFERENE— S DT
HRFREE o EEaRBSP:
FERELIS RS TMAS EFEOE -

FHEE—PHIRHAIFE2024-2025
BB TS A L S 3 5 T
AFHFEOE - = AL FENEES
SORERY TR (BB 19RER
HTEIES: - HEWL - $ERE - g
SEENFOIR AL S ED S35 7E2024 - 202587 1L
FESBIHRSSI0EB 32088 T
PELERTRS SRS EFEERT
1,230 BT RIS RER -

BIR b R/ SRNMALTE DS
SRBEHHL - BEEEERREE
EL0E BERMBEESSERTER
BRSRERMARE - AR B8AB
ERRENFTENRENEERN-
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Club

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Club are:
1) land lease renewal related risks and uncertainties;
2) Hiram’s Highway widening project;
3) general business related risks and uncertainties.

Land lease renewal related risks and uncertainties

As with the majority of private members sports clubs in Hong
Kong, the Club operates under a Private Recreational Lease
("PRL"), renewable every 15 years.

The Club’s current PRL expires on 30 June 2027,

Although it is anticipated that the Government will offer the
Club the opportunity to renew the PRL for another 15 years, it
is likely to be subject to the following conditions / risks:
(i) the Club satisfactorily opening up its facilities to eligible
outside bodies and the public;
(ii) payment of a land premium; and
(iii) compliance with the lease conditions.

Opening up requirements

In 2018, the Home Affairs Bureau conducted a public consultation
to gauge views from the public and stakeholders on the review
of PRL policy. Details of the results of the consultation were
published in a report dated February 2019: https://www.cstb.
gov.hk/en/consultation-and-publications/consultation-prls.html

The upshot of the 2018 consultation is that, as a condition
of renewing PRLs after 2025, the government will require
the lease holder to open up 30% of their total sports facility
capacity to eligible outside bodies (which include schools,
youth organisations, national sports associations and sports
organisations supported by government departments) and partner
with sports organisations to organise sports programmes that
can be open for enrolment by individual members of the public
with a minimum sports programme hours of 240 each month:
see https:;//www.cstb.gov.hk/en/other-information/prls.html
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The Club is well positioned to fulfil the opening up requirements
by virtue of its long-standing support of Sailabilty, which already
provides a large numbers of sailing hours to outside eligible
bodies. Further discussions need to be had with Culture,
Sports and Tourism Bureau (CTSB), however, to ensure that
the activities of Sailability can be counted for the purpose of
opening up requirements.

Land premium

Under the current PRL, the Club pays the Government a land
premium of $1,000 and rent at 3% of the ratable value, which
equated to $393,800 in the 2024-2025 Financial Yearr.

A proposal discussed as part of the 2018 consultation was to
charge clubs a land premium amounting to one-third of the fair
market value for renewal of PRLs after 2026, Understandably,
this policy encountered a great deal of opposition from the
affected clubs and government has subsequently been eerily
tight-lipped on this subject.

It remains to be seen whether the government will implement
the land premium proposal. Ifitisimplemented, the Club will
need to fundamentally adjust its business model and pricing
structure to continue to be financially sustainable.

Compliance with lease conditions
In recent years, the government has clamped down on clubs
breaching the conditions of their land leases.

In 2020, the Lands Department notified the Club of two infractions
of its land lease, one in respect of the Garden Bar canopy and
the otherin regard of the boat racks. In short, by building these
two structures in about 2016, the Club exceeded the permissible
site coverage with respect to buildings and structures, with the
Garden Bar canopy situation exacerbated by the fact that it did
not have approval from the Buildings Department.

The Club had no choice but to demolish the Garden Bar canopy.
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The boat racks were permitted to remain on condition that the
Club ‘regularize’ them by way of a modification to the land lease.
In September 2022, the Club made an application for a lease
modification to regularize the boat racks and to also increase
the permissible site coverage area to permit a permanent
structure to be built in place of the Garden Bar canopy. The
Planning Department has approved the application and the
Club is confident that CTSB and the Lands Department will
ultimately approve the same. There is, nonetheless, a risk that
it may not be approved. If so, the Club will need to demolish the
boat racks thereby significantly reducing the revenue from its
hardstand boat parking area, and the Garden Bar area will not
be able to be developed in any meaningful manner.

A third compliance issue lies with the fact that, since 2010, the
Garden Bar annex building has remained as 'works as progress’
with no Buildings Department approved completion certificate
due to the unauthorized omission of the lift and fire services
from the approved design. Works are underway to rectify this
situation and eliminate the risk of having to restore the Club to
its pre-2010 state as a condition of the lease renewal.

Hiram’s Highway widening project

After some delay, the Government finally approved the funding
for the dualling of Hiram’s Highway from Marina Cove to Sai
Kung Town and in early December 2024 awarded the contract
for the detailed design and construction contract. Construction
is planned to commence in February 2026 following a 14-month
design phase, with an anticipated completion date of August 2031.

The impacts to the Club’s operations are described in the
Planning & Works section of this report in this Report.

In short, although full pedestrian and vehicular access being
maintained to the Club at all times during construction, there
will inevitably be some disruption to the Club's operations which
may result in reduced revenue during the construction phase.
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General business related risks and uncertainties

As noted in the Membership Report in Part | above, the Club
is experiencing a decline in the number of Full and Senior
Associate members. This reduces the revenue received from
subscriptions, which currently accounts for 23% of the Club’s
total revenue.

Declining membership in these categories is also reflected
in reduced revenue from the F&B / Events business stream.

In order to address these risks and uncertainties, the Club has
recently enhanced its senior management through the addition
of a deputy general manager with specific responsibility for
marketing, membership and the Club’s restaurant and events.
The Club is also actively marketing itself across the boundary
in the Greater Bay Area in order to maintain a well-balanced
membership demographic across Asia.

Important events affecting the Club that have occurred
since the end of the financial year

No important events have occurred since the end of the financial
year that will affect the business of the Club.

Likely future development in the Club’s business

There is no plan to deviate from the Club’s current primary
business streams, however, there will be more of an emphasis
on developing alliances with sailing clubs in mainland China.

Adopted by the General Committee by a resolution
dated 6 October 2025

Sonny Payne
Commodore
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
{Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

GENERAL COMMITTEE REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The general committee members present their report and the audited financial statements of the club for
the year ended 31 March 2025.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the club are the encouragement and promotion of boating and sailing, motor
boat cruising and activities connected therewith. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
activities during the year,

Business review

Review of the club’s operations is set out in the Commodore’s Report and the Honorary Treasurer's
Report.

Results and financial position

The financial performance of the club for the year ended 31 March 2025 is set out in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 6.

The financial position of the club as at 31 March 2025 is set out in the statement of financial position on
page 7.

General committee members

The general committee members during the year and up to the date of this report are:-

Aaron Arthur GOACH

Carol Anne BIDDELL

Yuk Lin CHAN

Frances Lee HURLEY

James Harvey JESSOP

Kam Kuen LO

Kin Pong LO

Simon Anthony ROBERTSON

Sonny PAYNE

Daniel Yiu Man CHAN

David LAM

Michae] Kenneth SHARP

Mark ASHTON {Appointed on 14 November 2024)
David Nigel FRANCIS (Appointed on 14 November 2024)
Stuart David PRYKE (Appointed on 14 November 2024)
Clayton YU (Resigned on 14 November 2024)
Donald William JOHNSTON (Resigned on 14 November 2024)
Chun Pang LAU (Resigned on 14 November 2024)

Due to the personal reasons, Clayton YU, Donald William JOHNSTON and LAU Chun Pang, resigned as
a General Committee member on 14 November 2024. There was no matter in relation to their
resignations that need to be brought to the attention of the members of the general committee of the club.



THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by gnarantee not having a share capital)

GENERAL COMMITTEE REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

General committee members (Cont’d)

At the Annual General Meeting, the following members were elected or re-elected as the general
committee members with effect from 14 November 2024:-

Aaron Arthur GOACH
David Nigel FRANCIS
Mark ASHTON

Stuart David PRYKE
Kam Kuen LO

Sonny PAYNE

The club’s Articles of Association stipulate that the term of office of all general committee members is
two years, the following general committee members have not yet expired for re-election:-

Carol Anne BIDDELL

Daniel Yin Man CHAN

David LAM

Frances Lee HURLEY

James Harvey JESSOP

Kin Pong LO

Michael Kenneth SHARP
Simon Anthony ROBERTSON
Yuk Lin CHAN

Management contracts

The club has not entered into any contract whereby the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the club’s business have been undertaken by a party other than the club’s general
committee members or employees.

General committee member’s interest in contracts, translation and arrangements

No contract, transactions and arrangements of significance in relation to the club’s business in which the
club was a party, and in which a general committee member of the club had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted indemnity provisions

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for
the benefit of the general committee members of the club is currently in force and was in force throughout
the year.

Auditors
A resolution proposing that Wong Brothers CPA Limited, Certified Public Accountants (Practising), be
re-appointed as auditors of the club will be put to the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the General Committee

e+

Michael Kenneth SHARP

FlonorapsSoecyit



Wong Brothers CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising) EAx Q—g-l— gqg $ %%ﬁi-%- P2 &)
Directors: S8 M Kan Ricky W P Wong ¥ BRI RHRee
Clifford CK Lo Albert W W Chui BRI EAERIE

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by
guarantee not having a share capital)

Opinion

‘We have audited the financial statements of The Hebe Haven Yacht Club Limited set out on pages 6 to
27, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in members® funds and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the club as at
31 March 2025 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 622.

Basis for opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the club in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The general committee members are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the general committee report, other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. d

Our opinion on the financial stalements does not cover the other information and we do nol express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ain
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WONG BROTHERS CPA LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by
guarantee not having a share capital)

Responsibilities of general committee members for the financial statements

The general committee members are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap 622, and for such internal control as the general committee members determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statcments, the gencral committee members arc responsible for asscssing the
club's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the general committee members either intend to
liquidate the club or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The general committee members are responsible for overseeing the club's financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 622, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional otnissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the club’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the general committee members.



WONG BROTHERS CPA LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by
guarantee not having a share capital)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the general committee members’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the club’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our anditors’ report. However, future events ar conditions may cause the club to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the general committee members regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control, if any, that we identify during our audit.

e

Wong Brothers CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Albert Wing Wa, Chui
Practising Certificate Number: P06952

Hong Kong, 25 JUL 2075



THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Revenue

Operating expenses

Finance costs

Deficit before taxation
Income tax expense

Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Notes

5

2025 2024
HKS HKS
62,411,797 60,246,525
(74,629,134)  (71,079,446)

(93,225) (181,273)
(12,310,562)  (11,014,194)
(12,310,562)  (11,014,194)
(12,310,562)  (11,014,194)




THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

Notes 2025 2024
HK$ HKS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 26,475,641 30,529,379
Right-of-use assets 11 1,445,169 3,130,336

27,920,810 33,659,715

Current assets

Stocks of food and beverage 313,461 296,422
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 12 9,162,411 9,836,529
Cash and bank balances 13 54,014,576 60,246,157
Total current assets 63,490,448 70,379,108
Total assets 91,411,258 104,038,823

MEMEBERS’ FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Members®’ funds

Accumulated fund 61,614,042 73,924,604
Building levy 15,728,900 13,802,800
Total members’ funds 77,342,942 87,727,404
MNon-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 15 -- 1,680,000
Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals 5,644,574 5,798,554
Deposits received 6,863,741 7,246,088
Lease liabilities 15 1,560,001 1,586,777
Total current liabilities 14,068,316 14,631,419
Total members® funds and liabilities 91,411,258 104,038,823

Vi the General Committee
T dd e

Sonny PAYNE Daniel Yiu Man CHAN
Commodore Honorary Treasurer



THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED

(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

At 1 April 2023

Total comprehensive income for the year
Contribution from members

At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024

Total comprehensive income for the year
Contribution from members

At 31 March 2025

Accumulated Building

fund levy Total

HKS HKS HKS
84,938,798 12,731,400 97,670,198
{11,014,194) -- (11,014,194)
-- 1,071,400 1,071,400
73,924,604 13,802,800 87,727,404
(12,310,562) -- (12,310,562)
-- 1,926,100 1,926,100
61,614,042 15,728,900 77,342,942




THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Deficit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest income
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating deficit before working capital changes
Increase in stocks of food and beverage
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments
Decrease in creditors and accruals
(Decrease)/increase in deposits received

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments to purchase property, plant and equipment
Receipts from sales of property, plant and equipment
Decrease in time deposits with original maturity over 3 months
Interest received

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of lease liabilities

Building levy contributed by members

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note 2025 2024
HKS HKS$
(12,310,562)  (11,014,194)
7,399,482 6,856,573
1,565,167 1,565,168
(2,112,087) (1,737,733)
23,472 (14,338)
(5,434,528) (4,344,524)
(17,039) (3,644)
674,118 4,116,315
(153,980) (27,714)
(382,347) 38,911
(5,313,776) (220,656)
(3,402,816} (9,391,491)
33,600 105,000
8,000,000 24,000,000
2,112,087 1,737,733
6,742,871 16,451,242
15 (1,586,776) (1,428,727
1,926,100 1,071,400
339,324 (357,327)
1,768,419 15,873,259
52,246,157 36,372,898
14 54,014,576 52,246,157
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

GENERAL INFORMATION

The club is incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee not having a share capital. Under
the provisions of the club’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, every member shall in the
event of the club being wound up contribute to the assets of the club to the extent of HK$50.

The address of the registered office of the club is 10.5 Miles, Hiram’s Highway, Pak Sha Wan, Sai
Kung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the club are the encouragement and promotion of boating and sailing,
motor boat cruising and activities connected therewith,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies were consistently applied during the year, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

{a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™), which. includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 622.

The measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is historical cost, except
where otherwise stated in the accounting policies below.

(b) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs
(i)  Standards, interpretations and amendments effective since 1 April 2024

In the current year, the club adopted all the new and revised HKFRSs that are relevant
to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 April 2024. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
club’s accounting policies, presentation of the club’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

(ii) Impact of standards, amendments and interpretations yet to be adopted

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of new/revised standards, amendments and new/revised interpretations, which
are not yet effective and which have not been early adopted by the club for the year
ended 31 March 2025, The general commiitee members are in the process of making
an assessment and are not yet in a position to determine of what the impact of these
new/revised standards, amendments and new/revised interpretations to the results and
financial position of the club upon adoption.

<90
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2.3

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less aggregate depreciation and impairment losses,
if any. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its present working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul
costs, is normally charged to surplus or deficit in the year in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the assets, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of the assets. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and aggregate
depreciation/impairment losses are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting
from their disposal is included in surplus or deficit.

Club house building and improvement, sea wall and hardstanding and marine berthing acquired
prior to 30 June 2012 were fully depreciated over the original term of the land lease. Additions of
these items thereafter are depreciated over the remaining lease term of the club’s land or at an
annual rate of 4% as appropriate. In August 2016, the lease term of the club’s land was extended to
30 June 2027.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is caleulated to write off the cost over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the following annual rates:-

Indoor and outdoor equipment -20%

IT infrastructure - 10% to 25%

Moorings and boatyard - 20%

Crane, sampan and pontoon -15%

Dinghy, rescue boat and keelboat -25%

Hebe One - 6.67% to 20%

Forklift -10%

Seawall and hardstanding - Over the period of lease
Marine-berthing - Qver the period of lease
Club house building and improvement - Over the period of lease

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that non-financial assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and
value in use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates resulting in an increase
of the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to surplus or deficit in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

=11 -
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Stocks of food and beverage

Stocks of food and beverage are stated at the lower of cost, representing the purchase price, and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less direct selling expenses
based on prevailing market condition.

Finanecial instruments

Financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Accordingly, financial assets are recognised if the club has a contractual right to receive cash or
other financial assets from another entity. Financial liabilities are recognized if the club has a
contractual obligation to transfer cash or other financial assets to another entity.

@

()

©

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

These are non-derivative financial assets that are held as part of a business model that aims
to collect contractual cash flows and that additionally fulfill the cash flow condition, i.e. the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The financial
assets under this category include debtors and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents. They are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities generally comprise non-derivative financial liabilities.

Mon-derivative financial liabilities such as creditors are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

-12-



THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5  Financial instruments (Cont’d)

@

Impairment of financial assets

The club performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of (he relevant [inancial assets. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL™)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment is done based on the club’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

Member receivables

The club always recognizes lifetime ECL for receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on these assets is assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

Other financial assets

For all other financial assets, the club measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
club recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk of other financial assets has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the club compares the risk of a default occurring on them as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the club considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

-13-



THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5  Financial instruments (Cont’d)

CY

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Other financial assets (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly: :

- existing or forecast adverse changes in financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtors that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the club presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the club has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For intemal credit risk management, the club considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor

is unlikely to pay its debts in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the
club).

Trrespective of the above, the club considers that default has occurred when a financial asset,
other than member receivables, is more than 30 days past due unless the club has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
appropriate.

The club writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been placed under liguidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. A write-off constitutes a de-recognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in surplus or deficit.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the

club in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the club expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

£
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Translation of foreign currencies

The club maintains its books and records in Hong Kong dollars. Foreign currency transactions are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All exchange differences are taken to surplus or deficit.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the club assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the club has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the club recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for shori-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the club enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the club decides whether
to capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalized are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to
surplus or deficit in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in interest rate, or there is a change in the club’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the club will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination opfion.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in surplus or deficit if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

-15-



2.8

2.9

2.10

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
{Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leases (Cont’d)

The right-of-use asset recognised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, and any
initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Expected useful lives are determined by reference to comparable owned assets or the lease
term, if shorter. Depreciation is provided to write off the cost over its expected lease term.

Building levy

Building levy received from the club’s members is specifically designated for financing the club’s
building developments, and is taken to members’ funds directly.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the member, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the club is expected to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the member obtains control of the distinct good or
service. If control of the good or service is transferred over time, revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if
one of the following criteria is met:

- the member simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the club’s
performance as the club performs;

- the club’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the member controls as the club
performs; or

- the club’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the club and the club
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Entrance fees of new members are recognised upon admission of membership. Subscriptions from
active members are recognised on periodical basis during the membership period.

Food and beverage sales are recognised when the catering services are rendered.

Berthing, mooring and hardstanding rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
terms of agreements.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

-16-
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties

A related party is:-

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family if that person:

@
(ii)
(iif)

Has control or joint control over the club;
Has significant influence over the club; or
Is a member of key management personnel of the club.

(b)  An entity if any of the following conditions applies:

0
(i)

(ii)
(iv)

U]

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the club are members of the same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both the club and the entity are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
club or an entity related to the club.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity.

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the club.

e T 8



THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND POLICIES

Categories of financial instruments

2025 2024
HKS$ HKS
Financial assets at amortised costs:
Debtors and other receivables 3,531,426 4,175,628
Cash and bank balances 54,014,576 60,246,157
57,546,002 64,421,785
Financial liabilities at amortised costs:
Creditors and other payables 3,365,717 3,471,189
Lease liabilities 1,560,001 3,266,777
4,925,718 6,737,966

The risks associated with the above financial instraments include credit risk, interest rate risk and
liguidity risk, which are closely monitored by the general committee members.

The club’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability and volatility of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on these risks.

(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the club’s counterparties default on their contractual

obligations resulting in financial losses to the club.

In order to minimise credit risk, the general committee has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of the
counterparties’ financial positons and conditions are performed on each and every debtor
periodically. The club does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement to cover its

credit risk associated with the above financial assets.

The following table below details the credit risk exposure of the club’s financial assets which

are subject to ECL assessment:

Note to the 2025 2024
financial HKS$ HKS
statements
Lifetime ECL
(provision
Member receivables 12 matrix) 1,145,468 1,075,731
Other receivables 12 12m ECL 2,385,958 3,099,897
Cash and bank balances 14 12m ECL 54,014,576 60,246,157

The credit risk of bank balances are limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit ratings and quality.

Details of ECL assessment on member and other receivables are set out in note 12 to the

financial statements.

- 18-



THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND POLICIES (Cont*d)
(b) Liquidity risk
The club exercises prudent liquidity and cash flow risk management policies and aims at
maintaining sufficient liquidity and cash flows at all times. The following table indicates the
remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities of the club at the end of the

reporting period. The amounts of repayments are based on undiscounted cash flows and the
earliest date of repayments.

2025 2024
Total Repayable Total Repayable  Repayable
contractual within contractual within more than 1
Carrying  undiscounted 1 yearor Carrying  undiscounted 1yearor  year but less
value cash flow  on demand value cashflow  ondemand than 2 years
HKS HK3 HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
Creditors and
aceruals 5,644,574 5,644,574 5,644,574 5,798,554 5,798,554 5,798,554
Deposits received 6,863,741 6,863,741 6,863,741 7,246,088 7,246,088 7,246,088 --
Lease liabilities 1,560,001 1,560,001 1,560,001 3,266,777 3,360,000 1,680,000 1,680,000

14068316 14068316 _ 14068316 16311419 16404642 _ 14,724,642 _ 1,680,000
(c) Interest rate risk

The club has bank deposits bearing interest at floating interest rates. Cash flow interest rate
risk arises as fluctuations in market interest rates affect the club’s future level of interest
income. Cash flow interest rate risk is closely managed by the general committee on an

ongoing basis.
The following is a summary of floating rate interest bearing financial assets at the end of the
reporting period:-
2025 2024
Interest Amount Interest Amount
rate HKS$ rate HK$
Time deposits 3.00%t0 3.69% 46,500,000 3.70%to 4.70% 54,500,000
Cash at bank savings
account # 7,514,576 * 5,746,157
54,014,576 60,246,157

* Close to zero

A sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk of the club at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:-
Increase/(decrease) in
surplus or deficit and equity
2025 2024
HKS HKS
Increase in 100 basis points 540,000 602,000
Decrease in 100 basis points (540,000} (602,000)

The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk has been determined on the assumption that
changes in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, occurred at the end of the
reporting period. Increase or decrease of interest rates is based on the general committee’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until the end of
the next annual reporting period. The analysis for interest rate risk is performed on the same
basis for 2024.
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The presentation of financial statements in conforming with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying the accounting policies. These estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The following are the significant accounting estimates and assumptions and judgements in applying
the club’s accounting policies for preparation of the financial statements.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year in respect of provision for
expected credit losses of receivables.

The club uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL on receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various member segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the club’s historical observed default rates. The club will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information
such as forecast economic conditions. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The club’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of members’ actual default in
the future. Where the final outcome is different from the general committee members’ judgements,
allowances for ECLs have to be adjusted which will have impact on surplus or deficit in future
years.

REVENUE

2025 2024

HKS HKS
Member subscriptions 14,411,842 13,788,937
Entrance fees 3,833,169 3,732,228
Food and beverage sales 10,357,378 9,760,657
Berthing, mooring and hardstanding rental income 25,168,341 23,978,745
Sail training income 3,774,903 4,433,820
Carpark income 862,776 1,246,900
Racing and course fee income 809,568 449,074
Bank interest income 2,112,087 1,737,733
J/80 income 514,849 620,950
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment -- 14,338
Others 566,384 483,143

62,411,797 60,246,525
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

OPERATING EXPENSES
2025 2024
HKS HKS

Auditors’ remuneration 85,000 81,004
Bank charges 41,783 42,437
Cleaning and sanitary expenses 908,337 790,296
Club promotion expenses 348,599 553,393
Corporate hospitality 48,458 48,554
Cost of food and beverage 3,033,091 3,191,630
Expenses on racing 563,723 404,131
Expenses on sail training 936,877 796,300
Expenses on J/80 134,407 88,970
Depreciation - property, plant and equipment 7,399,482 6,856,573
Depreciation - right-of-use assets 1,565,167 1,565,168
Expenses on club functions 209,755 429,743
Government rent and rates 393,300 366,880
Insurance 1,742,767 1,776,428
Legal and professional fees 4,113,795 651,549
Licences and membership fees 182,323 154,203
Mandatory provident fund contribution 2,245,897 2,236,735
Marine licence fee, mooring rental and related expenses 1,362,405 1,268,334
Meeting expenses 14,887 13,693
Newspaper and magazine 25,012 25,467
Printing, stationery and stamps 188,355 264,338
Recruitment expenses 36,616 61,332
Repairs and maintenance 2,360,825 2,640,738
Salaries and wages 39,106,304 37,727,694
Short-term lease payments 194,164 144,319
Security expenses 2,049,329 2,583,989
Staff retirement fund contribution 28,507 28,360
Staff welfare 1,731,516 2,024,881
Sundry expenses 1,515,131 2,105,799
Telecommunication 112,469 101,891
Transportation 80,864 123,212
Uniform and laundry 293,010 263,881
Utilities 1,576,479 1,667,524

74,629,134 71,079,446

2] a-



7.

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

FINANCE COSTS
2025 2024
HK$ HKS
Interest on lease liabilities 93,225 181,273

GENERAL COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION

Remuneration of the general committee members disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
Companies Ordinance Cap 622 and the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation Cap 622G for the year is HKSNil (2024: HKSNil).

The general committee members are key management personnel of the club,

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been recognised in the financial statements as the income of the

club, of which over 50% is earned from its members according to the current operations of the club,
is not chargeable to Hong Kong Profits Tax.
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12.

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Office
premises
2025
HKS
Cost
At beginning of year 4,695,504
Lease modification (120,000)
At end of year 4,575,504
Aggregate depreciation
At beginning of year 1,565,168
Charge for the year 1,565,167
At end of year 3,130,335
Net book value 1,445,169

The club has leased the office premises with 3 years’ lease term.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

2025 2024
HKS HKS
Receivables from members, gross
- General operations 1,021,962 1,054,697
- Entrance fees receivable 113,925 --
- Building levy 171,600 88,000
1,307,487 1,142,697
Allowance for ECL (48,094) (66,966)
Receivables from members, net 1,259,393 1,075,731
Other receivables, gross 1,369,107 2,292,171
Allowance for ECL (100,000) (100,000)
Other receivables, net 1,269,107 2,192,171
Utility and sundry deposits 899,026 866,026
Trade deposits 103,900 41,700
Prepayments 5,630,985 5,660,901

9,162,411 9,836,529
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12.

THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

ECL for receivables is recorded using an allowance account. When specific members are being
identified as credit impaired with no repayment ability, the debts would be written off against the
allowance account. Movements of the allowance account during the year were:-

2025 2024
HKS HKS
At beginning of the year 66,966 88,205
Specific irrecoverable debts written off (18,872) (21,329)
At end of the year 48,094 66,966

During the year, specific irrecoverable debts of HK$18,872 (2024: HK$21,329) due from members
were written off.

Receivables from members consists debts due by a number of members. The club has no
concentration of credit risk in respect of receivables from members. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed by the members of the general committee. The club applied the simplified approach to
provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for
receivables. To measure the ECL, receivables were grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The club performed historical analysis and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and ECL based on reasonable and supportive forward-looking information
available without undue cost or effort.

The following is an aging analysis of the receivables from members at the end of the reporting
period:-

2025 2024

HKS HKS
Not past due 1,117,875 1,002,726
Past due 1-30 days 100,932 71,134
Past due 31-60 days 21,898 1,859
Past due 61-90 days 8,154 12
Past due more than 90 days 10,534 --

1,259,393 1,075,731

The members of general committee consider that ECL has been provided sufficiently for the past
due debts over 30 days. Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 2
years. Based on assessments, the ECL rates of collectively assessed receivables from members
were 1% (2024: 2%).
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by gnarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The general committee made periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement history, past experience, and reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information that was available at the reporting date. Other receivables mainly
include receivables of HK$376,914 (2024: HK$713,599) due by Sailability Hong Kong Limited
(“Sailability HK”). Sailability HK is a not-for-profit association incorporated in Hong Kong, and
collaborates with the club in organising sailing events. At 31 March 2025 and 2024, expected
credit loss of HK.$100,000 has been provided for, based on the general committee’s assessment.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2025 2024
HKS$ HKS
Time deposits 46,500,000 54,500,000
Savings accounts
- General operations 655,165 329,997
- Building levy 1,584,775 1,207,796
Cash and current accounts 5,274,636 4,208,364

54,014,576 60,246,157

Time deposits have terms for 3 months and bear interest at 3.00% to 3.69% (2024: 3.70% to 4.70%)
per annum. Cash in savings accounts eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Note 2025 2024
HKS$ HK$
Cash and bank balances 13 54,014,576 60,246,157
Time deposits with original maturity over 3 months -- (8,000,000)

54,014,576 52,246,157
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THE HEBE HAVEN YACHT CLUB LIMITED
(Limited by guarantee not having a share capital)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

LEASE LIABILITIES
2025
HKS$
Lease payments -
Within one year 1,560,001
Within two to five years — e
1,560,001
Future interest expense i
1,560,001
Classification in the statement of financial position:-
2025
HKS
Non-current liabilities --
Current liabilities 1,560,001
1,560,001
Reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Lease
liabilities
2025
HKS$
At beginning of year 3,266,777
Lease modification (120,000)
Changes from financing cash flows (1,586,776)
At end of year 1,560,001
LEASE ARRANGEMENT

The club hires its moorings, wet berths and hardstands to members for unspecified lease periods.
In general, members are required to pay to the club a deposit equivalent to three months of the
hiring fee, and the contract can be terminated by one month notice.
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ARCEFURAFEMHRESEN R ARZ BT R G T B ARKZ SRS
B CRAHHAA B BRREA 2B SEBREE - A E TG RBHR
B AR A Pl 6915 A R HRAT 0 R AN SR LS e il
EQRATHH MAYEREARBRF AT TBROMEERT  LRETHBS
BAEE T -

AT ARSI 8 05 k& H ARtk AR 47 ¢ -

—F=iHf —Fowmi

B #T
EX-F 1,117,875 1,002,726
e&f—2=+8 100,932 71,134
e@i=+—-aZ2x+8 21,898 1,859
cidfix+—aE2a+a 8,154 12
IR E e o 10,534 .

1,259,393 1,075,731

PITEZBCARATMERBRBHCAS L CBINABB =+ 8 64 B IERIZHE - T
MERBERFAEANBERFHTRERER T AL BRI SR EEKE
RSN TABERBRES S 1% (2024 5£:2%) «

PWITZARARMERAN - BEBRURRE A THFOOEEE LHFBOHRE
B8 TMHACBUIRMRYHTRERETEHNTE - REBRRET LR LS
Sailability Hong Kong Limited (“Sailability HK”) 2 & ## % 376,914 7t (2024 4 : &
% 713,599 7) - Sailability HK Afe % 3 & 3L 6 5k £ 4115 4 0 AR AVERMN
BWEF - RBHTERC RS RE202543 31 BR2024 43 A31 8 ¥H
W4 5448 6% & 3 % 100,000 7 o
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13.

14.

BiMEREE RAE
(RBARRA R )

P 4R R B
BRE-F-ZE=ZA=Z+—BLE$EE

A RBATHIK
—E-Td —FomE
#*A b ¥
g LR 46,500,000 54,500,000
HEHFR
- — iR A 655,165 329,997
- ERME 1,584,775 1,207,796
ReRERE O 5,274,636 4,208,364
54,014,576 60,246,157

RHGHAM=ZM@A » §HEH 3.00%E 3.69% (2024 F: 3.70%E 4.70%) - B ¥ £

OERA LB TIHEABRTERMESE -

REREARLRE
M —F-z4f —F-omE
b ¥4 # T
RABBATHIR 13 54,014,576 60,246,157
Lipr = A 2 X MHFHK -- (8,000,000)
54,014,576 52,246,157
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15. AE A%k
—F-i%
&t
AESH -
— %R 1,560,001
MELZEEN -
1,560,001
RRAEEA o
MR A Z o8 1,560,001
—E-34%
#t
FER T A e
ik Ry 1,560,001
1,560,001
BRAEHEL ARV HHBEE
A Ak
—F-ff
# 7t
<A 3,266,777
HmREEE (120,000)
BERALREFLEH (1,586,776)
£R 1,560,001
16. #EERHE

BOBMBREE R F
(B ARARA R D)

RE-—F-_FF=A=+—BLFH

MR AR

ARTEE - BEIHRAALAEPAGGTE  LEBAMR . — AT FEHE
HAREREZAA zESERS  RBHEEAOM—BAEL -
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Appendix A FigA

Committee Members ZE&Z N E

General Committee
HiTEEE

Sonny Payne
Aaron Goach
Eddy Lo
Bridget Chan
Harvey Jessop
Mike Sharp
Daniel Chan
Carol Biddell
David Lam
Frances Hurley
John KK Lo
Mark Ashton
Nigel Francis
Simon Robertson
Stuart Pryke

24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race
Committee
0)\FREVESEES

Simon Robertson
Bridget Chan
Carol Biddell
Juliet Ashton
Lizzie Sharp
Peter Longe

Sara Houghton
Sirena Pettit

*Non-Member
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Balloting Committee
Eazag

Mike Sharp
Sonny Payne
Aaron Goach

Ad hoc Member:
Bridget Chan
Carol Biddell
Daniel Chan
David Lam
Eddy Lo
Frances Hurley
John KK Lo

Environmental and Social
Committee
RERHEZEE

Carol Biddell

Eugene Olman

Janice Chau

Oscar Dehlsten *

Per Niclas Rydin

F&B Committee
BNZEE

Carol Biddell

(Chair from Dec 2024)

David Lam
(Chair until Nov 2024)

Tina Campbell
Jessic Fung
John KK Lo
Sirena Pettit

Finance Committee
MEZEE

Daniel Chan
Aaron Goach

Kelvin Woo
(fram Mov to Dec 2024)

Mark Ashton
Michael Van Ommeren
Sonny Payne

Sarah Hou$hton
(from Mar 2025,

Human Resources Committee
ADBREES

Sonny Payne
Aaron Goach
Daniel Chan
Frances Hurley
Joseph Lau



Marine Operations and
Facilities Committee
BEATRAGZEE
Eddy Lo

Antoine Rouget

Bridget Chan

David Cowe

Desmond Ngan

William Ma

Membership Working Group
BRESHIENME
Mike Sharp
Aadarsh Mangadu
Aaron Goach
Carol Biddell
Frances Hurley
Jennifer Dentry
Joseph Lau
Lyndsey Cook
Mark Ashton

Pisa Yu

Sirena Pettit
Sonny Payne
Tina Campbell

Planning and Works
Committee
RARTIEZEE

Sonny Payne
Chris Tidball
Mark Ashton

Powerboat and Hebe One
Committee
HBNRENEEE
John KK Lo

Chow Ka Shing
Chung Wai Kit

Eric Kwok

Philip Au Yeung
Steve Chu

Sunny Leung
Viviar Pak

Sailing Committee
HEZEE

Bridget Chan
Aaron Goach

Bob Vart

Carl Wilkinson
Frances Hurley
Jamie Xiong

Lesley Anderson

Sailing Development Committee
M EHBEREES
Harvey Jessop
Aadarsh Mangadu
Alex Lai *

Don Chow

JohnSo*

Mariken Van Ommeren
Michael Anderson *
Michael Van Ommeren
Peter Vinna

Thomas Lam *



Appendix B w8

Sponsors & B) &

Monsoon Spring Series 2024
(from Feb - April 2024)
HERIITE2024

San Miguel

HHYC Open Dinghy Regatta 2024
2Bl /ML K #2024

Sun Hung Kai Scallywag Foundation
Cancer Council Australia

XTY Energy Drink

Leo Wealth Steering the Course
Women’s Sailing Festival 2024
Leo Wealth £t fiiiifFfii2z024
Leo Wealth

Vino Artisan Italian Wines

UK Sailmakers Typhoon Series 2024
UK Sailmakersiff [l 75 £ 5| $£2024
UK Sailmakers

San Miguel

Diving Space

Fragrant Harbour

Ming Hing Waterworks

Summer Saturday Series 2024
WK B AN H R B #2024
Ming Hing Waterworks

Singha

148

Ming Hing Waterworks

Port Shelter Regatta 2024

I BILK 35 2 R e WL A 82024
Ming Hing Waterworks
Havaianas

Carlsberg

24 Hour Charity Dinghy Race 2024
24/ B/ MIEFE 2024

St James’s Place

Knight Frank

Piercey Marine

Corney & Barrow

Bon Café

Carlsberg

Monsoon Winter Scrics 2024

A FRT|#E2024

Breezy Marine (HK agency for Ullman Sails)
Carlsberg

Kowloon Cup 2025

JLBETR2025

Breezy Marine (HK agency for Ullman Sails)
Carlsberg

Monsoon Spring Series 2025
HERINE2025

Breezy Marine (HK agency for Ullman Sails)
San Miguel

Moana Road
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